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TCC International Holdings Limited & EEIREEE R A 7

Notice of Annual General Meeting
RRBFAXEES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an annual general meeting of
TCC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held
at Gloucester Room, 2nd Floor, Mandarin Oriental, Hong Kong
Limited, 5 Connaught Road, Central, Hong Kong, 27 May 2008

at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements
and the reports of the Directors and Auditors in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2007;

2. To appoint and re-elect Directors;

3. To authorise the board of Directors to fix the remuneration

of the Directors;

4. To re-appoint the Auditors and to authorise the board of

Directors to fix their remuneration;

5. To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without
amendments, the following resolution as special resolution

of the Company:
SPECIAL RESOLUTION
“THAT:

the amount of HK$3,719,754,000 standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company as at the date
of this resolution be cancelled and the credit arising
therefrom be applied to a set off in full the accumulated
losses of the Company in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company and all applicable laws, and
the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized
to do all such acts, deeds and things as they shall, in their
absolute discretion, deem appropriate to effect and

implement the foregoing.”
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
RRBFAXEES

ZEERBBAARRBEBRZRTBS
(&

6. To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without 6.

TEBIE) THRBR:

amendments, the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions

of the Company:
ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS EBERAER
(A)  “THAT: (A [EhE:

(1)

(2)

subject to paragraph (3) of this resolution, the
exercise by the Directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the
Company to allot, issue and deal with additional
shares in the share capital of the Company and to
make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such powers
be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the approval in paragraph (1) of this resolution shall
authorise the Directors during the Relevant Period
to make or grant offers, agreements and options
which would or might require the exercise of such

powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

(1)
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
RRBFAXEES

(3)

(4)

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital
allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally
to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or
otherwise) by the Directors pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (1) of this resolution, other
than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter
defined), (i) the exercise of any option granted
under the Company’s share option scheme or (iii)
any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing
for the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or
part of a dividend in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company, shall not exceed
20 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the Company in issue at the
date of the passing of this resolution and the said

approval shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this resolution until whichever is the

earlier of:

()  the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by any applicable laws or the
articles of association of the Company to be
held; and

(i) the revocation or variation of the authority
given under this resolution by ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Company

in general meeting.

(3)
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRRBFRESES

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a
period fixed by the Directors to holders of shares
on the register of members of the Company on a
fixed record date in proportion to their then
holdings of such shares (subject to such exclusions
or other arrangements as the Directors may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws or requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange

in any territory).”

(B) “THAT:

(1)

@)

subject to paragraph (2) of this resolution, the
exercise by the Directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) during the Relevant Period (as
hereinunder defined) of all the powers of the
Company to purchase shares in the capital of the
Company, subject to and in accordance with all
applicable laws and/or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange
in any territory applicable to the Company, be and

is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of the shares of
the Company which may be purchased by the
Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph
(1) of this resolution during the Relevant Period
shall not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue at the date of the passing of
this resolution and the said approval shall be limited

accordingly; and

Annual Report 2007 & ¥
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRREFARERES

(3)

for the purpose of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this resolution until whichever is the

earlier of:

() the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by any applicable laws or the
articles of association of the Company to be
held; and

(i) the revocation or variation of the authority
given under this resolution by ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Company

in general meeting.”

(3)
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

(C)

BRBEFRSES

“THAT, conditional upon the resolutions set out in
paragraphs (A) and (B) of item 6 of the notice convening
this meeting being duly passed, the general mandate
granted to the Directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) to exercise the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with shares of the Company be
and is hereby extended by the addition to the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital which may be
allotted and issued or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted and issued by the
Directors pursuant to such general mandate of an
amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of
the shares in the capital of the Company repurchased
by the Company pursuant to the exercise by the
Directors of the powers of the Company to repurchase
such shares provided that such amount shall not exceed
10 per cent of the aggregate nominal value of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the

passing of this resolution.”

By order of the Board of

TCC International Holdings Limited
Kwok Pui Ha

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 30 April 2008
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TCC International Holdings Limited

Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRREFARERES

10

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 23
May 2008 to 27 May 2008 (both days inclusive), during which

period no transfer of shares will be registered.

Notes: Loz

ARARBH-_ZENFAA-_+=RE-ZZ
NERAZ+LAEM (BEERWR) L=
BRiBPELTE EXHEASE TR
ERERNBFERT-

In order to qualify for attending and voting at the above meeting, 2. AFAHELLARERNRELEREBZER AT
all transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates ERNBPXHERBERESNEANR T
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrars in FRAZHTZATFEEB=+298 XEAR
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, RIZEBBRMNBEELIEEBPRELFERD
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s BERAR U BEEE BEHR1835E A Fl
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on D7HE1712-1716F <

22 May 2008.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is 3. NEBEREELAREITRELEREBZRE 1T
entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, in the event EREZEA—BRZERERELE TRER
of a poll, vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the FRBEREBRE-ZZRRBEAEAFRT -
Company.

In order to be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy and the 4. ZAREKXBEREZZEAZERESIHEMITE
power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed, X (INE) AEHRBAZEBRACZEEE
or a notarially certified copy of such power of attorney or authority, EXHMBEEXHER THEERAGNET
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrars in MESRTRITHEI4SNFRERRAIZE
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, ERNDBPELIBREETRESFZLBERR
at Rooms 1806-1807, 18th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s A Hat R EE 2R KER183EA Fh L1818
Road East, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time 1806-1807=E ' /7 BB M °

fixed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Concerning resolution (A) set out in item 6 of this Notice, approval 5. BERABEECHABRABRMES RIESK

is being sought from members for a general mandate to be given
to the Directors to authorise allotment of additional shares in the
capital of the Company in the event that it becomes desirable. The
Directors have no immediate plan to issue any new shares of the

Company.

BERIUELTESTIRAEFERAQFBMA
RZEINRD 2 R RE-EERE I EG
B 1T A R R EAA # AL
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRREFARERES

Concerning resolution (B) set out in item 6 of this Notice, approval
is being sought from members for a general mandate to be given
to the Directors to repurchase the Company’s shares. The Directors
wish to state that they will exercise the powers conferred thereby
to repurchase shares of the Company in circumstances which they
deem appropriate and beneficial for the Company and its

shareholders.

Concerning resolution (C) set out in item 6 of this Notice, approval
is being sought from members for an extension of the general
mandate given to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares by adding to it the number of shares repurchased
under the authority granted pursuant to resolution (B) set out in

item 6 of this Notice.

Pursuant to article 80 of the articles of association of the Company,
at any general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting
shall be decided on a show of hands unless a poll is required
under the Listing Rules or (before or on the declaration of the
result of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of any other
demand for a poll) a poll is demanded. A poll may be demanded
by:

(@ the Chairman of the meeting; or

(b) at least five shareholders present in person or by proxy and

entitled to vote; or

(c) any shareholder or shareholders present in person (or in case
of a corporation, by its duly authorised representative) or by
proxy and representing in the aggregate not less than one-
tenth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having

the right to attend and vote at the meeting; or

(d) any shareholder or shareholders present in person (or in case
of a corporation, by its duly authorised representative) or by
proxy and holding shares conferring a right to attend and
vote at the meeting on which there have been paid up sums
in the aggregate equal to not less than one-tenth of the total

sum paid up on all the shares conferring that right.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES
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The Group’s effort in building up a respectable market presence
in Mainland China’s cement market began to generate fruitful
results in 2007. With the Yingde plant running at close to optimum
utilisation throughout the year, the Group managed to significantly
enlarge its capacity and further reduce its unit cost. On the
other hand, the favourable market environment in Guangdong
had given rise to a strong demand and higher selling price for
cement. These factors had contributed to an outstanding
operating results for the Group, which reported an attributable
profit to shareholders before goodwill impairment of HK$216

million.

The year of 2007 not only marked the turnaround in our operating
performance, it also signified a major step forward in our
corporate expansion. During the year, the Group successful
acquired the entire share capital of the Hong Kong-listed Chia
Hsin Cement Greater China Holding Corporation (“CHCGC”). The
exercise enabled the Group to accelerate its expansion in scale

of operation, and to extend its market reach to Eastern China.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

With CHCGC’s established market presence and its strategic
location supported by advanced berth facilities, we expect to
achieve synergetic effect by integrating CHCGC’s operations into
our existing network of supply chain. In addition to supplying
clinker to our Fuzhou plant via waterways, the CHCGC plant
also provide us a platform to tap into the distribution channels in

the Yangtze River Delta.

Meanwhile, we will carry on the Group’s organic growth, with the
continued development of the Yingde plant. Two additional
production lines will come into operation in Yingde this year. To
capitalise on the abundant land supply and limestone reserve of
the Yingde plant, we will keep up with our capacity expansion
momentum, and develop the plant into one of the largest cement

production bases in Southern China.

During the course of our capacity expansion, we have been
highly conscious about our production activity’s impact on the
environment. Stringent measures have been applied in pollution
control and energy saving. The Group has installed two residual
heat power generation units at its Yingde plant. Inauguration of
the power generation units in fourth quarter of the current year
will enable the Group to consume the residual heat generated
from clinker production in a cost-efficient manner. In addition to
resolving the issue of heat emission, the units can supply the

Yingde plant around one-third of its power consumption.
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TCC International Holdings Limited

Chairman’s Statement
FERES

The cement market in China remains promising for enterprises
with a sizeable capacity and significant market share. Despite
the widespread concern of the State’s intensified austerity
measures, demand for quality cement remain strong in Southern
China. The massive infrastructure development plans in the Pearl
River Delta region will support strong consumption of construction
materials. Furthermore, the Guangdong province’s determination
in replacing obsolete cement capacity will offer an opportunity
for our Group to fill in the market gap left behind by the phased-

out inefficient small cement plants.

We believe the cement industry’s consolidation will lead to a
healthier development of the sector. The elimination of inefficient
capacity will serve to stabilize the price of cement at a reasonable

level, under a better regulated operating environment.

The Group’s aggressive plans to bring up the capacities of clinker,
cement and slag powder in its various facilities are expected to
further enhanced its core competitiveness, as well as to
strengthen its prominent market position in the Guangdong
region. We are determined to become a leading player in China’s
cement industry. To realize our corporate mission we need to
not only build the size of our operation, but more importantly to
strengthen our efficiency and cost-effectiveness. In this way, we
can ensure that our shareholders will be able to benefit from our

continued expansion.

Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie

Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEENWE DA

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Overall Results

The year 2007 marked a major cornerstone of the Group’s
corporate development. Following years of investment in capacity
expansion, the Group’s primary cement production base in Yingde
(phase 1) became fully operational in 2007 and had been running
at a satisfactory level throughout the year. The Group’s significant
position in the People’s Republic of China’s (the “PRC’s”) cement
market had been further consolidated with its acquisition of Chia
Hsin Cement Greater China Holding Corporation (“CHCGC”),
which enabled the Group to extend its market coverage to

Eastern China.

On the operation front, the Group’s healthy growth momentum
continued into the second half of the year and contributed to a
favourable operating results for the full financial year. With the
arrival of the industry’s peak season in the fourth quarter of the
year and the strong product selling price, the Group’s revenue in
the second half of the year was 55 per cent higher than that of
the first half.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group reported an
audited consolidated revenue of HK$1,829 million, which was
87 per cent higher than that of the previous year. The strong
growth was attributable to enhanced capacity and continued

improvement in the market environment in Southern China.
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However, as a result of the acquisition of the entire interest of
CHCGC (the “Acquisition”), the Group had an impairment of
goodwill of HK$3,723 million. The extent of the impairment
reflects the unexpected and substantial increase in the share
price of the Company between 11 June 2007 (being the date
prior to suspension of trading as a result of announcement of
the Acquisition) and (i) 16 October 2007 (being the date when
the acquisition became unconditional) and (ii) 30 October 2007
(being the date when the Group acquired not less than 90% of
the disinterested parties). The Company is required by Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standard 3 to use the published closing
prices available on 16 October 2007 and 30 October 2007 to
calculate the goodwill. As consolidated goodwill is derived from
purely as a result of accounting requirements, even though it
was reflected in the 2007 financial statements, however, such
an one-off and non-cash item of impairment of goodwill will not
have any effect to the normal operation of the Group and it will
not affect the cashflow of the Group. The impairment of goodwill
is only a result of accounting treatment. As a result of the upsurge
in sales coupled with an increase in average selling price, it
contributed to an attributable profit to shareholders before
impairment of goodwill of HK$216 million in 2007, represented a
significant improvement when compared to the attributable loss
of HK$18 million in 2006.

Mainland China

The Group’s Yingde plant commenced
commercial production in the second
half of 2006, and became running at
full capacity for the first year in 2007.
With the facilities reaching its optimum
efficiency, the Group was able to enjoy
economies of scale and improved

operating margins.
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The Yingde plant’s sales volume during the year amounted to
approximately 4 million metric tonnes, which was close to 90
per cent of its design capacity. Of the product sold by the Yingde
plant, approximately 60 per cent was cement with the balance
being clinker for other manufacturers. With the price of cement
continued to improve in Guangdong province in the second half
of the year, and a significantly increased output, the plant began

to turn around and reported a favourable profit in 2007.

To capitalise on the enormous limestone reserve accessed by
the Yingde plant and abundant available land, the Group

continued to expand the Yingde facility’s scale of operation.

The third and fourth production lines of Yingde Phase Il
development have been completed in December 2007 and
January 2008 respectively. These new facilities will become fully
operational in the year 2008 and will bring the plant’s total

capacity to 9 million metric tonnes per annum.

Demand for cement had been strong in Guangdong. Apart from
the extensive infrastructure and property developments, the
Province has one of the highest proportions of obsolete vertical
kiln in the PRC. According to the PRC government’s policy, 30
million metric tonnes of capacity from the aforementioned
inefficient facilities in Guangdong province should be phased out
between the years 2007 and 2010.

Benefited from heavy demand and improved sales proportion of
cement, the average selling price of the Group’s products in
Guangdong province increased by 40 per cent when compared
with that of the previous year. Taking advantage of the favourable
market environment, the Group has strengthened its sales

channels to expand its sale in the Pearl River Delta region.
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The sales of the cement grinding plant in
Fuzhou, Fujian Province, began to pick up in
the second half of 2007, and generated a more
significant profit contribution to the Group’s
overall results. The Fuzhou grinding plant’s total
sales volume increased by 25 per cent to about
1.4 million metric tonnes in 2007. During the
year, the Fuzhou plant reported a two-fold surge
in its profit, when compared with that of the
previous year. The average cement selling price
of products from the Fuzhou plant increased by
7 per cent from that of 2006. In order to be
able to support its further market penetration,
the Fuzhou plant completed the construction of
a new production line with an additional capacity of 750,000

metric tonnes at the end of 2007.

Located at the port area with the Group’s own berthing facilities,
the Fuzhou plant is able to enjoy lower transportation cost of

clinker.

The Group made a major strategic move during the year under
review to take over CHCGC, which was a public listed company
in Hong Kong. This landmark exercise signified the Group’s latest

action to expedite its expansion.

CHCGC is a major cement manufacturer in Eastern China with
its facilities situated in the Jurong, Jiangsu Province. Jurong
facilities’ proximity to the affluent Yangtze River Delta and its
possession of two deep water jetties, each with a handling
capacity of 30,000 metric tonnes, enable it to have a prominent

market presence in the Eastern China market.

In 2006, Jurong plant had the majority of its output exported to
overseas market. With the PRC government’s suspension of tax
rebate for cement export, and a stable domestic demand, Jurong
plant had increased its proportion of domestic sales during the

year under review.
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Jurong plant existing cement capacity of 4.2 million metric tonnes
had reached its optimum utilisation, and a new production line

had been approved for its continued expansion.

In July 2007, the Group announced the signing of an agreement
for the development of a new clinker and cement transit centre
and four cement grinding production lines in Foshan, Guangdong
Province. Total investment in this venture will amount to RMB500
million. The project is in the process of initial planning and
documentation. The Group intends to achieve the Foshan

venture’s capacity of 4 million metric tonnes in two phases.

The Group’s 60 per cent owned slag powder joint venture with
Guangxi Liuzhou Steel (Group) Corporation (“Liuzhou Steel”)
doubled its profit during the year. This was mainly due to strong
selling prices in the Guangdong Province and lower raw material

costs with the supply from Liuzhou Steel.

Slag powder is mainly used in ready-mixed concrete. The healthy
economic development in the Pearl River Delta has given rise to
a strong demand for this product. The Liuzhou joint venture
achieved a sales volume of approximately 650,000 metric tonnes
in 2007.

Since the joint venture’s capacity has been fully utilised, a new

production line, with an annual capacity of 700,000 metric tonnes,

has been completed in January 2008.
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Anhui King Bridge Cement Co., Ltd. (“AKB”), the Group’s 60 per
cent owned slag powder grinding plant, reported a modest
adjustment in sales volume from 700,000 metric tonnes in 2006
to 650,000 metric tonnes in 2007. Despite the decline, there was
an approximately 17 per cent growth in profit before tax due to

the higher selling price of slag powder in the Eastern China.

Hong Kong

The Group’s cement trading and concrete businesses in Hong
Kong reported a mild retreat in its operating profit with a
decreased sales volume, when compared with that of the previous
year. The shrinkage in this market was a result of lacking large
scale developments and infrastructure projects. However, given
the major infrastructure developments announced by the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region government and a thriving
property markets, it is expected to have stronger demand for

cement and concrete in 2008 and beyond.

The Philippines
During the year, the Group’s cement distribution and handling
services facilities in Manila, the Philippines, continued to provide

a steady stream of cash flow and profits to the Group.

Other Investments
Besides realising a gain of HK$5.4 million from equity investment
in the first half of 2007, the Group had not registered any other

contribution from disposal of equity investment.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group adopts prudent treasury policies in managing cash

resources and bank borrowings.

Total unrestricted cash and bank balances of the Group as at 31
December 2007 amounted to HK$838.9 million, of which 1.8%,
15.8% and 82.2% were denominated in HK$, US$ and RMB
respectively. Highly liquid short term investments, classified as
held-for-trading investments, with a market value of HK$335.0

million as at 31 December 2007, were also held by the Group.
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The maturity profile of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31

December 2007 are as follows:

Annual Report 2007 & ¥
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2007 2006
—EZLF ZEERX
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Amount repayable: BARUTHEEEZSRE:
On demand or within one year R—FANEEREE 1,005,362 638,065
More than one year but not BB —FETBBMEF
exceeding two years 912,030 112,176
More than two years but not HBBMFETBBASF
exceeding five years 1,105,698 268,369
More than five years fBiA A F - 560,881
3,023,090 1,579,491

Out of the bank loans as at 31 December 2007, HK$1,108.9
million was denominated in HK$, HK$795.4 million in US$ and
HK$1,118.7 million in RMB. All of the bank loans are of floating

rate structures.

The Group’s financial position remained healthy, with net current
assets of HK$551.9 million as at 31 December 2007 and gearing
ratio, calculated based on total bank borrowings and total assets
as at 31 December 2007, of 40.4%.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 31 December 2007, deposits amounting to HK$3.7 million
have been pledged by the Group as a margin of issuance of

letter of credit for the purchase of plant and equipments.

As at 31 December 2007, certain property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments have been pledged to secure bank
borrowings of the Group with the carrying amount of HK$1,339.2

million and HK$632.4 million respectively.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURES

The Group utilised various methods to mitigate foreign currency
exposures arising from the currency mismatch of construction
material purchases and sales. To protect the benefits of
shareholders, cost-efficient hedging methods will be considered

in future foreign currency transactions.

No foreign exchange contracts were outstanding as at
31 December 2007.

MAJOR CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s capital expenditure in

respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
contracted but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to approximately HK$760 million. The
Group anticipates funding those commitments from its future
operating revenue, bank borrowings and other sources of finance

when appropriate.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had 1,381 full-time
employees. Total wages and salaries of the Group for the year
then ended amounted to HK$129.8 million. Discretionary
bonuses, recommended by management and reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee, are payable to employees in Hong
Kong and senior management of overseas subsidiaries based
on performance. In addition, the Directors may invite employees,
including executive Directors (in which case approval of
independent non-executive Directors is required), of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and associates to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company. During the year, no share

options were granted.
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PROSPECTS AND FUTURE INVESTMENT
PLANS

With the massive infrastructure development in Southern China,
and the rapid urbanisation in the Pearl River Delta region, we
expect the demand for cement will continue to grow and will

thus sustain the cement price to stay at a healthy level.

The Group has successfully established a strong presence in
Southern China and has a prominent foothold in Eastern China.
We are determined to become a leading player in China’s cement

industry.

The Group has developed its Yingde plant into a major production
base to support its market penetration in the Guangdong region.
With an enormous site area and a massive proven limestone
reserve, the Yingde plant provides the Group with ample room
for its continued expansion. Its access to waterways also offers

a cost-effective means of efficient transportation to the market.

The Group has commenced planning for the Phase Il
development of the Yingde plant, with a blueprint to add two
production lines with a total capacity of 4.5 million metric tonnes,
bringing the plant’s overall capacity to 13.5 million metric tonnes

upon completion.

In addition to capacity and market expansion, the Group is also
committed to protecting the environment and saving energy in
the course of its production. In 2007, the Group entered into a
turnkey agreement for the construction of power generation units
using residual heat energy generated by the production lines at
the Yingde plant. When completed in the fourth quarter of 2008,
the facilities will further lower Yingde plant’s production costs,
with one-third of its electricity consumption satisfied by its own

power generation units.
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The Jurong plant has been approved by the PRC government
for the development of a new production line. Construction of
the production line with an annual capacity of 2.25 million metric
tonnes will commence shortly. Given its strategic location for
waterborne transportation, the Jurong plant is expected to offer
synergetic effects through supplying clinker to the Group’s Fuzhou

grinding facilities in the long run.

The Fuzhou plant’s capacity will be increased by 50 per cent in
2008, with the inauguration of its additional facility. The Group
has two additional grinding lines under planning. When these
new facilities become operational, they will add another 2 million
metric tonnes of capacity to the Fuzhou plant. Since there is no
limestone reserve near the Fuzhou plant, it has to rely mainly on
third-party supply of clinker. With the expansion of the Jurong
plant in Jiangsu, the Fuzhou grinding plant can take advantage
of the berth facilities of the two plants to have lower-cost clinker

through maritime transportation.

The development of the Group’s new clinker and cement transit
centre and four cement grinding production lines in Foshan is in
its initial preparation stage. The investment is a major strategic
move for the Group to consolidate its position as a leading

cement supplier in Pearl River Delta region.

The new production line at the Group’s Liuzhou joint venture has
been completed in January 2008. It will bring the plant’s total
capacity to approximately 1.4 million metric tonnes. Upon
completion of its expansion, the Liuzhou joint venture is expected

to accelerate its sales in Guangxi and Guangdong provinces.

The Group is committed to becoming a leading cement enterprise
in China. In addition to its dynamic plans for organic growth, the
Group is also actively seeking to expedite its corporate expansion
through merger and acquisition. Following the accomplishment
of its expansion target, the Group will become one of the largest
cement manufacturers in China, both in terms of scale of

operations and market coverage.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Koo, aged 53, is the Chairman of the Company and is
responsible for the overall policy and direction of the Group. He
became a Director of Hong Kong Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited (which carried on the Group cement business
in Hong Kong prior to the Group’s re-organisation in September
1997) in July 1991. He is also the vice-chairman of Quon Hing
Concrete Company Limited (“Quon Hing”) and Director of Hong
Kong Concrete Company Limited (“Hong Kong Concrete”), both
being associated companies of the Company. He holds a
bachelor degree in Accounting from the University of Washington
and a MBA degree from the Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania, the USA. He is currently the Chairman and
president of Taiwan Cement Corporation (“T’Cement”), the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Mr. Koo serves as
the Chairman of China Synthetic Rubber Co., Ltd., Chairman of
Taiwan Prosperity Chemical Corporation, a Director of China Steel
Chemical Co., Ltd., a Director of CTCI Corporation, a managing
Director of Industrial Bank of Taiwan, the Chairman of Synpac
(N.C.) Limited, USA and the Chairman of Continental Carbon
Company, USA. T’Cement, China Synthetic Rubber Co., Ltd.,
Taiwan Prosperity Chemical Corporation, CTCI Corporation,
Industrial Bank of Taiwan and China Steel Chemical Co., Ltd.

are companies listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.

Mr. Wu, aged 53, is the Managing Director and executive Director
of the Company, the deputy managing Director of Hong Kong
Concrete and Directors of Quon Hing and Yargoon Company
Limited. He joined the Group in November 1993. Mr. Wu is
responsible for overall management, strategic planning and
business development for the Group. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in business administration from National Cheng Chi
University, Taiwan, and a MBA degree from the Wharton School
of the University of Pennsylvania, the USA. He has more than 20

years of experience in cement-related businesses.
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Mr. Kao, aged 54, started his career with Ford Motor Company,
after obtaining a bachelor’s degree in Accounting from National
Cheng-Kung University of Taiwan. After his 13 years career in
several multinational companies (such as Ford Motor Company
— Taiwan and Philips Taiwan group), he joined Primax Technology
Corporation (“Primax”), one of the top 3 image products producer
in Taiwan. From December 1990 to December 1999, Mr. Kao
was the Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of the
Primax. Then he joined Pre-vision Technology Corp., a subsidiary
of Primax specializing in ERP consulting service, as Executive
Director. Since 2003, Mr. Kao has been acting as a Director of
Golden Bridge Electech Inc., a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation. He is currently the group Chief
Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of T'Cement and

Directors of various subsidiaries of T'Cement.
Non-executive Directors

Dr. Shan, aged 54, is currently a Partner of TPG Capital Limited.
Mr. Shan serves on the Boards of T’"Cement, BOC Hong Kong
(Holdings) Limited, Lenovo Group Limited, China Unicom Limited,
Shenzhen Development Bank Co., Ltd and Taishin Financial
Holdings Co., Ltd. He has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since August 1997. Prior to 19983,
Dr. Shan was a professor at the Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania, the USA. He received his Ph.D. from UC
Berkeley.
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Mr. Chang, aged 55, is the brother-in-law of Mr Koo, Cheng-
Yun, Leslie who is the Chaiman and an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Nelson Chang is also the uncle of two non-
executive Directors of the Company, Mr. Chang, Kang-Lung,
Jason and Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth. Mr. Nelson Chang
graduated from New York University with a master degree in
business administration. Mr. Nelson Chang is Directors of
T’Cement, the ultimate holding company of the Company, and
Chia Hsin Cement Corporation (“CHC”), the parent company of
a substantial shareholder of the Company named Chia Hsin
Pacific Limited (“CHPL”). Mr. Nelson Chang is also a Director of
CHPL. In addition, Mr. Nelson Chang is Directors of China
Synthetic Rubber Corp. and Taiwan Prosperity Chemical Corp.
T’Cement, CHC, China Synthetic Rubber Corp. and Taiwan
Prosperity Chemical Corp. are companies listed on the Taiwan

Stock Exchange Corporation.

Mr. Chang, aged 36, is the nephew of Mr. Nelson Chang, a non-
executive Director of the Company and the cousin of Ms. Wang,
Lishin, Elizabeth, also a non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Jason Chang graduated from the Massachusetts Institute of
Technology, Boston, U.S.A. with a master degree in management
of technology. He also has a bachelor degree of arts from Carroll
College, Helena, U.S.A. Mr. Jason Chang is a Director of CHC,

a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.

Ms. Wang, aged 34, is the niece of Mr. Nelson Chang, a non-
executive Director of the Company and the cousin of Mr. Jason
Chang, also a non-executive Director of the Company. Ms. Wang
graduated from the Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan with a MBA
in organization restructuring. She also has a bachelor degree of
science in finance from Boston College, Boston, U.S.A. Ms. Wang
is a Director of CHC, a company listed on the Taiwan Stock

Exchange Corporation.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Liao, aged 78, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since August 1997. He was educated
at the University of Hong Kong and the University of Durham,
the United Kingdom. He is a senior advisor to Mitsui & Co (HK)
Limited. He retired from the Hong Kong civil service in 1989 and
was the former Secretary for District Administration and the
Secretary for Home Affairs. He served as non-executive Directors
of the Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
and The HSBC China Fund Limited. He also served on the Council
of the Stock Exchange between 1991 and 1995. Mr. Liao was
also appointed as an Official Member of the Hong Kong
Legislative Council in 1980 and of the Hong Kong Executive
Council in 1985.

Dr. Chih, aged 53, is currently Director and Chief Architect Global
Purchasing and Supply Chain of General Motors Corporation in
Detroit US. Before joining GM in 2007, Dr. Chih was the Director
and Chief Information Officer of Orient Overseas Container Line
Ltd., a subsidiary of Orient Overseas (International) Limited
(“OOCL”) which is a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He also served as
executive committee member of the Board of OOCL and was
globally responsible for IT strategy, information systems
development, information technology infrastructure, business
process and ISO9000 facilitation. Dr. Chih also served as
Directors of several OOCL subsidiary companies such as
CargoSmart Limited and IRIS Systems Limited. Before joining
OOCL in 1993, Dr. Chih was the Senior Principal at American
Airlines Decision Technologies. Dr. Chih also had extensive
consulting experience in the US railroad transportation industry.
Dr. Chih received an M.A. and a Ph.D. from Princeton University,
an M.S. from the University of Texas at Austin and a B.S. from

National Taiwan University.
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Mr. Shieh, aged 50, started his career with Ogilvy & Mather
Advertising Taiwan since 1982. In 1999, he became managing
Director of Enterprise |G, a consultancy company and a subsidiary
of one of the world’s largest communications groups, WPP Group
plc, In 2001, Mr. Shieh was relocated to Shanghai to set up
Enterprise IG China and further develop its business and
operations in the Greater China Region. He retired from WPP
Group plc in 2005. Mr. Shieh has over 20 years of experience in
advertising, public relations, corporate image and identity

management.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Lu, Ker-Fu

Mr. Lu, aged 54, holds a bachelor’s degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Tamkang University, Taiwan and joined
T'Cement in 1977. He has more than 30 years of experience in
cement and engineering businesses, and had worked in head
office and cement plants of T’Cement before joining the Group
in April 2007.

Mr. Chou, Li

Mr Chou, aged 58, graduated in mechanical engineering from
Provincial Kaohsiung Institute of Technology. Mr Zhou has joined
T’Cement since 1973. He has acquired practical experience
through holding various posts responsible for mechanical repair
and maintenance, plant construction planning, standardized plant
operation and advanced plant management. He joined the Group
in April 2007.

Mr. Liu, Chung-Jung

Mr. Liu, aged 43, holds a bachelor’s degree in industrial
engineering from the Taiwan Technical University, and join
T’Cement in 1991. He had worked in the T’Cement’s Taipei
factory and was responsible for sales, materials and factory

management. He joined the Group in March 2007.
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Mr. Yu, Shuang-Fu

Mr. Yu, aged 50, holds a bachelor’s degree in the Department of
Business from National Open University in Taiwan, and joined
T’Cement in 1979. He has more than 25 years of experience in

cement-related businesses. He joined the Group in October 2005.
Mr. HUANG, Yeou-Jinn

Mr. Huang, aged 59, graduated in chemical engineering from
National Taipei University of Technology. He joined T'Cement in
1974 and has more than 30 years of experience in cement and

engineering businesses. He joined the Group in January 2008.
Ms. Kwok Pui Ha

Ms. Kwok, aged 38, joined the Group as the Financial Controller
and Company Secretary in October 2005 and is responsible for
the financial control over the Group. She holds a bachelor’s
degree in Accountancy from City University of Hong Kong. She
is fellow members of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, Associate Chartered Accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and ordinary
member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. Prior to joining
the Group, she had served senior management position and
financial controller position in several listed companies and had
7 years’ auditing experiences with an international accounting

firm.
Mr. Chi, Jung-Kun

Mr. Chi, aged 48, has also been the financial controller of Quon
Hing since June 1995. He holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from National Chung Hsin University, Taiwan, and
a master’s degree in business management from the Asian
Institute of Management, the Philippines. He has more than 20

years of working experience in cement-related businesses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions throughout
the accounting year ended 31 December 2007, save for the
exceptions that the Company has not fixed the terms of
appointment for the non-executive Directors which deviates from
the provision of A.4.1 of the CG Code. However, they are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the provision to the
Company’s Article of Association, and their appointment will be
reviewed when they are due for re-election. As such, in the
opinion of the Directors, the principle of CG Code 4.1 that all
directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals has

been up held.

CODES OF CONDUCT ON DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions and dealings (the “Code of Conduct”) based on the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The terms of
the Code of Conduct are no less exacting than the standards in
the Model Code, and the Code of Conduct applies to all the
relevant persons as defined in the Code, including the Directors
of the Company, any employee of the Company, or a Director or
employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the Company
who, because of such office or employment, are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation
to the Company or its securities. Having made specific enquiry,
all Directors have fully complied with the required standard set

out in the Model Code throughout the year of 2007.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year, the Board comprised two executive and five
non-executive Directors of whom three are independent as
defined by the Stock Exchange. The number of independent
non-executive Directors and the non-executive Directors
represents 43% and 71% of the Board respectively. With effect
from 1 January 2008, one of the non-executive Director was
redesignated as executive Director, three new Directors were
appointed as non-executive Directors. To enhance independence
and accountability, the role and responsibility of the Group
Chairman, Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie and the Group Managing
Director, Mr. Wu Yih Chin, is separated (the biographical details

of the Directors are set out on pages 25 to 30).

In accordance with the Articles of Association (the “Articles”), all
Directors appointed to fill a causal vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment. At every annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than

one-third shall retire from office by rotation.

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication at least four times every year. The Board is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s businesses and
development, formulating long term strategies and policies. The
Board also monitors and controls operating and financial
performance in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. All
Directors and Board committees have recourse to external legal
counsel and other professionals for independent advice at the
Group’s expense if they require it. The Board has delegated the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group’s businesses

to management.

Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, two Board
committees, namely, the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were established to oversee particular aspects of the

Group’s affairs.
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Details of the attendance of individual Directors at the Board EEEFAREEEERAMNEZEEEEREY
meetings and the two Committees meetings during the year are &l Bl R EHR T &
set out in the table below:
Meetings Attended/Held
HEBTES
Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee

g ERERS FMZERES
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie (Note 1) ER R EE (BaT) 4/4 N/AZ 15 A N/AZ i
Mr. Wu Yih Chin REWEE 4/4 N/AT i 1/1
Mr. Kao Teh-Jung (Note 2) SEEEE (HiF2) 3/4 N/AT i N/AT 3 FA
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Dr. Shan Weijian BEAZELT 4/4 N/AT 33 A N/AA i3 A
Mr. Chang, An-Ping, Nelson (Note 3) SR FEAE (M3) N/ATER N/AT i N/AT 3 FA
Mr. Chang, Kang-Lung, sSRM 4w & (BaE3) N/ATER N/AT 18 A N/AT i3 A

Jason (Note 3)

Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth (Note 3) Fabzt (Ka3) N/ATEHR N/AT i N/AT 3 FA
Independent Non-executive Directors VFEITES
Mr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald BARELE 4/4 3/3 1/1
Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth MERIE LT 4/4 3/3 1/1
Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger (Note 4) B KL (B it4) 4/4 3/3 1/1
Notes: B &t

1. Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie was appointed as member of the

Remuneration Committee with effect from 11 January 2008.

2. Mr. Kao, Teh-dung was redesignated as executive Director with

effect from 1 January 2008.

3. Mr. Chang, An-Ping, Nelson, Mr. Chang, Kang-Lung, Jason and

Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth were appointed as non-executive

Directors with effect from 1 January 2008. Ms. Wang, Lishin was

appointed as member of the Audit Committee with effect from 1

January 2008.

4.  Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger was appointed as independent non-

executive Director,

members of the Audit Committee and

Remuneration Committee with effect from 4 January 2007.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Articles of the Company, the Board has the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. The nomination should be taken into consideration of
the nominee’s qualification, ability and potential contributions to

the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and its members

comprise mainly independent non-executive Directors namely:

Mr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald
Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth
Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger
Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth

(appointed on 4 January 2007)
(appointed on 1 January 2008)

All members possess diversified industry experiences and
appropriate professional qualifications as required under the

Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year. Their
major duties and responsibilities are set out in the terms of
reference and the work conducted by the Audit Committee

included the following matters:

1.  Reviewed the Group’s 2006 annual and 2007 interim reports,
internal controls and corporate governance issues and made

recommendations to the Board;

2. Recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as auditor;
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3. Discussed with the external auditors their independence and

the nature and scope of the audit;

4. Discussed with the external auditors any material queries
raised by the auditors to management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control

and management’s response.

The Committee reviewed the Company’s internal control based
on the information obtained from the external auditors and
Company’s management and was of the opinion that there are

adequate internal controls in place.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-

executive Directors and two executive Directors:

Mr. Wu Yih Chin

Mr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald
Dr. Chih Ching Kang, Kenneth
Mr. Shieh, Jen-Chung, Roger
Mr. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie (appointed on 11 January 2008)

Its major terms of reference are summarized as follows:

1.  To formulate and recommend to the Board the policy for
the remuneration of the executive Directors and other senior

executives as designated by the Board;

2. To determine the individual remuneration package of each
executive Director including base salary, annual bonus plans

and allocation of share options;

Annual Report 2007 & ¥
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3. To consider and recommend to the Board any payment or
compensation commitment to be made to an executive

Director on termination of his contract;

4. In formulating its policy, the Committee shall give due regard
to the contents of the Listing Rules and shall also consider
market forces and compare between different remuneration
packages paid to Directors of other companies of a similar
size in comparable industries. The executive Directors may
attend meetings of the Remuneration Committee when
invited to do so, but not when their own remuneration is

being discussed; and

5. To determine any performance related remuneration schemes

and executive share option schemes.

The Remuneration Committee is authorized by the Board to seek
any information it requires from any employee of the Company in

order to perform its duties.

In connection with its duties, the Remuneration Committee is
required by the Board to select, set terms of reference for and
appoint remuneration consultants, at the Company’s expense as
the Remuneration Committee deems necessary in order to

perform its duties.

The Remuneration Committee sets the remuneration policy for
the executive Directors and senior management. Specifically, the
Remuneration Committee agrees their service contracts, salaries,
other benefits, including bonuses and other terms and conditions
of employment. It also agrees terms for their cessation of

employment.

One meeting was held in 2007 with the attendance rate of 100%.
No executive Director takes part in any discussion about his

own remuneration.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees charged to the accounts of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the non-statutory audit services amounted
to HK$1,942,000. The non-statutory audit services consist of
financial due diligence, tax compliance and the interim review.
The cost of statutory audit services provided by external auditors
was HK$2,902,000. The responsibilities of the external auditors
with respect to financial reporting are set out in the section of

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 55 to 57.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had issued press announcement in
respect of a number of ‘connected transactions’, details of which
have been included in the Report of the Directors on pages 38

to 54 and the related press.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognizes its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
accounts which give a true and fair view and are in accordance
with generally accepted accounting standards published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;

judgments and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for
maintaining an adequate internal controls system and reviewing
its effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The Company
management maintains and monitors the systems of controls on

an ongoing basis.

Based on the assessment made by the Company’s management
and external auditors during its statutory audit, the Audit
Committee satisfied that the internal control system is sufficient
to provide reasonable assurances that the Group’s assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition,
transactions are properly authorized and proper accounting
records are maintained. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks

of failure in the Group’s operational system.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group consist of the import and
distribution of cement in Hong Kong, the manufacture and
distribution of cement, clinker and slag powder in other areas of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the provision of
cement handling services in the Philippines. Through its
associates, the Group is also engaged in the production and
distribution of ready-mixed concrete in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Brunei. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year. Upon
completion of acquisition of Chia Hsin Cement Greater China
Holding Corporation (“CHCGC”) during the year, the Group also
exports cements to the United States, Middle East, Africa and

New Zealand.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 58.
The board of Directors does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on page 61 & 62.

At 31 December 2007, the Company’s reserve, including the
share premium and contributed surplus accounts, available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, computed in
accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$2,866,207,000. Under the laws
of the Cayman lIslands, a company may make distributions to its
members of the share premium and contributed surplus accounts

under certain circumstances.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie (Chairman)

WU Yih Chin (Managing Director)

KAO, Teh-Jung (redesignated as an executive

Director on 1 January 2008)

Non-executive Directors:

SHAN Weijian

CHANG, An-Ping, Nelson (appointed on 1 January 2008)
CHANG, Kang-Lung, Jason (appointed on 1 January 2008)
WANG, Lishin, Elizabeth (appointed on 1 January 2008)

Independent non-executive Directors:

LIAO Poon Huai, Donald

CHIH Ching Kang, Kenneth

SHIEH, Jen-Chung, Roger  (appointed on 4 January 2007)

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards their
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
considers that each of the independent non-executive directors

is independent to the Company.
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According to Article 99 of the Company’s Articles of Association
(the “Articles”), Mr. Chang, An-Ping, Nelson, Mr. Chang, Kang-
Lung, Jason and Ms. Wang, Lishin, Elizabeth shall hold office
until the forthcoming annual general meeting and shall then be

eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Articles, Mr. Wu Yih Chin,
Mr. Kao, Teh-dung and Mr. Liao Poon Huai, Donald shall retire
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 30

of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding companies, any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME BRESE

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on BEARAR—NANEFTARBHEMNZ —IA
5 October 1997 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”), the Company BERER S ([EBRETE]) RAARRZE
had on 31 March 2006 granted to certain Directors the rights to ERE=ZA=1+T—HRETEEETUER
subscribe for shares at an exercise price of HK$1.266 per share 12668 T2 ITEERBEROH ZEN ZEES
exercisable during the period from 1 October 2006 to 30 March AR EERNFTA—HEZZE——F=A=
2011 (both days inclusive). TH(BREEEMX) BMITEBBEESR -

A summary of movement of the share options granted to Directors EEERERERFACEBENT:

during the year is as follows:

Number of share options
BREHA

Balance Granted Exercised Cancelled Balance

Date Exercise  Exercise at during on during at
Name of Director of grant price  period 1.1.2007 the year 30.11.2007 the year 31.12.2007
RZZTLHE
RZBELE RZBELE +=A
-A—H +-A=+H =t+-H
Exps RHAH RE GRHE 2B FRERAL % FREH &
HK$  (Note)
Ero (i)
Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie 31 March 2006 1.266 1 October 2006 to 5,000,000 - (600,000) - 4,400,000
ED —ZERF 30 March 2011
“A=+—"H “EERE+A-H
- g - ﬁ
=A=+H
Wu Yih Chin 31 March 2006 1.266 1 October 2006 to 1,500,000 - (600,000) - 900,000
REHX —RERE 30 March 2011
= Eqp=lg] —ZERETA-R
ET——F
SR=TE

6,500,000 - (1,200,000

5,300,000




Report of the Directors
EEE®RES

Note:

The exercisable period of an option granted under the scheme
commences on the date falling six months after the date of
grant of an option and expiring at the close of business on
the day falling immediately prior to the fifth anniversary of the
date of grant in respect of such option. As both of the Directors
who hold the options set out above were originally seconded
from Taiwan Cement Corporation (“T’Cement”), special
restriction apply to the exercise period of these options: up to
40% of the share option held by each Director/employee may
be exercised in 2007, a further 30% in 2008 and the entire
balance from 2009 onwards. These share options will not
lapse when the Director leaves the Group and returns to his
original employment with T’Cement; their termination is
determined by reference to the date when the Director

subsequently ceases to be employed by T'Cement.

The market price of the shares immediately before the day of

which options were exercised on 27 November 2007 was
HK$8.56 per share.

On 23 May 2006, the Old Share Option Scheme was cancelled

and a new share option scheme was adopted by the Company.

No option under this new scheme has been granted from its first
adoption to 31 December 2007.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2007, the Directors, Chief Executive or their
associates had interests in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”) as follows:

EERTHAEBRES 2ES

RZZBZE+F+_A=+—B BREXRAR

EHRBEGRD (TE 5 RBEHE]) %3524
EFZERMAR ARRZER TTHAERK
HEF 8 AL REARBORE 2 B MR R 2
RmE T

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company RAEAQAFEBRZERE
Percentage of
the Company’s
Capacity and Number of issued
Name of Director nature of interest shares held share capital
BEEEZ HRRABE BT
Esps SO RHEE FrEROEE RE2BDL
Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie Directly beneficially owned 2,300,000 0.18%
EA EEERHRE
Wu Yih Chin Directly beneficially owned 3,100,000 0.24%
REK BEEERESR
5,400,000 0.42%
The interest of the Directors in the share options of the Company EERARNAERECERSNEE M BRE
are separately disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial B s3I 5 -

statements.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, the Company
has not been notified of any interests or short positions were
held or deemed to be held under Part XV of the SFO by any
Director or Chief Executive of the Company or their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code or
which were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be
recorded in the register referred to therein. Nor any of the
Directors and the Chief Executive (including their spouses and
children under the age of 18) had, as at 31 December 2007, any
interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe for the
securities and options of the Company and its associated
corporations within the meaning of the SFO, or had exercised

any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the details disclosed under the share option scheme
disclosures in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
at no time during the year, there were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by the Directors;
or was the Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable

the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE

INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2007, the register of substantial shareholders R-EZE
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that the following shareholders had notified the Company

of the relevant interests in the issued share capital of the

BEARBERZBRR

S o
T

+tHE+ZA=+—H RBEEFRH
ERPIFEIBOHRARA AR EZBRRER
it TIBEREMEARRR] BERBARAC
BOTEBRANBHEES

Company.
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s Number
Capacity and ordinary issued of share
Name nature of interest shares held share capital options held
EARRF
BHEEHEZ Frfs 2BITRA ¥
=g BHORME ZTER¥AE ZESL BREZHE
TCC International Limited Directly beneficially 567,518,000 44.28% -
owned
BEEERESR
T’Cement (Note 1) Through a controlled 567,518,000 44.28% -
(KtaE1) corporation
FBRFZEGEE
Chia Hsin Pacific Limited Directly beneficially 369,963,000 28.87% -
(“CHPL") owned
BEEERRES
International Chia Hsin Directly beneficially 4,191,886 0.33% -
Corporation owned
BEEERES
Chia Hsin Cement Corporation Through a controlled 374,154,886 29.20% =

(“CHC”) (Note 2)
(Ktiz2)

corporation
7R XA
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Notes:

(1)  T’Cement is interested in the shares of the Company by virtue of
its beneficial ownership of the entire issued share capital of TCC

International Limited.

(2) CHC is interested in the shares held by its subsidiaries, CHPL and

International Chia Hsin Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, no other
person had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company or the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s largest customer
and its five largest customers accounted for approximately 10.8%
and 30.8% of the Group’s total sales revenue, respectively.
Purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and its five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 11.6% and 32.5% of the

Group’s total purchases, respectively.

Messrs. Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie, Wu Yih Chin, Chang, An-Ping,
Nelson and Liao Poon Huai, Donald, Directors of the Company,
had less than 5% direct or indirect interest in T’"Cement, one of
the Group'’s five largest suppliers and the Company’s ultimate

holding company.

Apart from the above, none of the Directors of the Company or
any of their associates or any shareholders which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital, had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest

customers and suppliers during the year.
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RELATED PARTY AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions, which fall within the definition
stipulated in the Hong Kong Accounting Standard 24 (“HKAS
24”) “Related Party Disclosures”, undertaken by the Group during
the year are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements. The transactions included in note 41 items (i) to (vi)
to the consolidated financial statements also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Directors have reviewed the following continuing connected
transactions under which a conditional waiver from strict
compliance with the continuing connected transaction
requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules has

been obtained:

() supply of cement by the Company’s ultimate holding
company in the ordinary and usual course of business in

Hong Kong;

(i) supply of cement and/or clinker by the Company’s ultimate
holding company in the ordinary and usual course of
business in the PRC;

(i) leasing of a site on Tsing Yi Island, Hong Kong, from a

fellow subsidiary of the Company;

(iv) leasing of a site in Tondo, Manila, the Philippines, from an

associate of the Company’s ultimate holding company;

BEAIREEHAERS
AEEBRAFERBEBGTERNE24E([E
BEETERFE241&]) R RIEATHE]FTH
CEBRETZBEANATRZEINNEGAMBR
FMTEE41 o GRE BRI T 4158 () 2 (vi)EPT
B RGNEARBEREBHMEZIMER AT
FHRAN(TETARA]) B14AZFRTE 278
MER e

EXCYHTIESRFEMERZELER %

ERERERFEEEKRTRREBETLET

RAIFVAAZEMEARBERER S ZRE

() AXRRAZEEERIFNEFTERABR
—REBBREPHENKTE:

(i) AARAZEKERAREFERAT R

—REBBEPEEARR, AR

(i) MAAR-—HREEMBLAREEEEEX

5B
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(v) receive of logistic and unloading services from a fellow (v) BARA—FERRNERRIREYRRE

subsidiary of the Company; BR%

(vi) receive of implementation service of a computer software Vi) AARBZERKBARIREEMEGER
system from fellow subsidiaries of the Company; REBRE:

(vi) receive of maintenance service of a computer software (i) AAREZERKBARIREEMEER
system from fellow subsidiaries of the Company; SEERE

(vii) sales of certain cement products to a subsidiary of a (ii) MEZRRZ2MBRABIEES TKEE

substantial shareholder; an

(ix) purchase of clinker from a subsidiary of a substantial (ix) MEEACEZH B A AEARR:

shareholder;

(x) sales of limestones to a subsidiary of a substantial x) MEEZERRMBARHEEAKRA:

shareholder;

(xi) sales of slag powders to a minority shareholder of a xiy MMBEARZPBRRIEEESY:

subsidiary;

(xi) purchase of clinker from a minority shareholder of a (xiiy AIMTB AR 2 PHREE AR K&

subsidiary; and

purchase of slag from a subsidiary of a minority shareholder (xii) MME AT 2 PEARE 2 M E A A A K

of a subsidiary. B o

(xiil

=
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The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,

confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have

been approved by the board of Directors and, in their opinion,

were:

(a)

conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary

and usual course of business of the Group;

fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the

Company are concerned;

entered into either in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions or, where there
are no such agreements, on terms that are no less favourable

than those available to or from independent third parties;

within an annual limit of HK$120 million for the year in

respect of the transaction stated in (i) above;

within an annual limit of HK$230 million for the year in

respect of the transaction stated in (i) above;

within an annual limit of HK$6.6 million and HK$5.0 million

for the year in respect of the transaction stated in (v) above;

within an annual limit of HK$51.85 million for the year in

respect of the transaction stated in (viii) above;

within an annual limit of HK$410.62 million for the year in

respect of the transaction stated in (ix) above;

within an annual limit of HK$10.37 million for the year in

respect of the transaction stated in (x) above;

within an annual limit of HK$31 million for the year in respect

of the transaction stated in (xi) above;

=
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(k) within an annual limit of HK$242 million for the year in
respect of the transaction stated in (xii) above; and

() within an annual limit of HK$32 million for the year in respect

of the transaction stated in (xiii) above.

Details of the continuing connected transactions set out in (xi) to

(xiii) above are summarised below:
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MENK)EXINRAM 2 FEBERSH 2FIB
BT

2007 2006
—EBLE —TTREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FHET
Sales of slag powders to a minority M\ £ XE (xi)EE P 2 [/ —
shareholder of the same subsidiary WBAR VEIRREE
referred to in (xi) above (note 1) BE (K1) - 8,162
Purchase of clinker from a minority M| £ S (xi)E; At 2 Rl —
shareholder of the same subsidiary WB AR LEARE
referred to in (xii) above (note 2) BARK (Kax2) 144,422 30,038
Purchase of slag from a subsidiary of M) _E 58 (xiii) B AT it 2[R —
a minority shareholder of MEBARZPEREREZ
the same subsidiary referred W B~ aEAKE (ffaF2)
to in (xiii) above (note 2) 17,179 10,942

Notes:

The above continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2007 did not exceed the annual limits as set out in (j) to (I)
above. The transactions were entered into on terms no less favourable

than those available from third parties.

(1)  The basis of the pricing policies for the above continuing transaction
is set out in greater details in circular to the shareholders of the

Company dated 15 December 2006.

(2) The basis of the price determination for the above continuing
transactions is set out in greater details in circular to the

shareholders of the Company dated 1 February 2005.
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EEEHEE

The board of Directors engaged the auditor of the Company to
perform certain agreed upon procedures in respect of the above
continuing connected transactions of the Group. The auditor
has reported their factual findings on these procedures to the
board of Directors. The Independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions and the report
of the auditor and have confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into by the Company in the ordinary course of its
business, on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with
the terms of the agreement governing such transactions that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the

year.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21 of
the Listing Rules, the following disclosures are included in respect
of the Company’s loan agreements, which contain covenants
requiring performance obligations of the controlling shareholder

of the Company.

Pursuant to a loan agreement and amendment to loan agreement
dated 23 June 2005 and 6 September 2007 respectively between
the Company and certain banks relating to a five-year term loan
facility of HK$500,000,000, a termination event would arise if (i)
T'Cement ceases to own legally and beneficially, at least 30% of
the shares in the Company’s capital or (ii) the Group fails to

meet the financial covenants stipulated in the loan facility.
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Report of the Directors

EEE®REE

Pursuant to a loan agreement dated 26 February 2007 between
the Company and a bank relating to a one-year loan facility of
US$15,000,000, a loan agreement dated 11 April 2007 between
the Company and a bank relating to a one-year loan facility of
HK$20,000,000, a loan agreement dated 3 April 2007 between
the Company and a bank relating to a loan facility of
HK$50,000,000, a loan agreement dated 17 July 2007 between
the Company and a bank relating to a loan facility of
HK$20,000,000 and a loan agreement dated 6 September 2007
between the Company and a bank relating to a loan facility of
HK$30,000,000, a termination event would arise if T'"Cement,
the Company’s ultimate holding company, ceases to own
beneficially, directly or indirectly, at least 30% of the shares in

the Company’s capital.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Principal corporate governance practice as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 31 to 37.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market

statistics.

Annual Report 2007 & ¥
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the Company’s Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 31 to 37.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient
public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as required under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended
31 December 2007.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results and its assets and liabilities

for the past five years is set out on page 156.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Koo, Cheng-Yun, Leslie
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
26 March 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMHEES

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF TCC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TCC
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to
155, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2007, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMHEES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A REF

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2007 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

e R

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HEZ=ZTL+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

2007 2006
—EELE ZETREF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
i i FER FAT
Revenue W& 6 1,829,168 980,418
Cost of sales 558 K AR (1,491,744) (892,980)
Gross profit EF 337,424 87,438
Investment income & WA 29,403 38,154
Other income and gains H b Ug A X F) 8 93,255 35,363
Impairment loss on goodwill EmEREBE 18 (8,722,639) -
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHMAX (22,546) (17,225)
General and administrative expenses ~ —#& R T 52 (91,569) (69,866)
Impairment loss of property, ME -BWER
plant and equipment HEREBE - (8,388)
Finance costs A& A AR 9 (101,921) (71,996)
(3,478,593) (6,520)
Share of results of associates BBt E NB 2 ¥4 7,915 10,999
(Loss) profit before tax briial (B518) m® 710 (3,470,678) 4,479
Income tax expense FriS#i 2 12 (2,736) (3,873)
(Loss) profit for the year REE (B18) &57F (3,473,414) 606
Attributable to: LA 4
Shareholders of the Company ZiNZNES ) (3,506,645) (18,303)
Minority interests LR RER 33,231 18,909
(3,473,414) 606
Loss per share BiREE 14
- basic — H AR HK(404.2) centsi& fll HK(2.4) centsy& 11l




Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

At 31 December 2007 R -ZEZE+4#+_-F=+—H

Annual Report 2007 & ¥

2007 2006
—EELE ZETREF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B ax FER FAT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y ] 15 3,873,850 1,611,004
Prepaid lease payments A EKIE 16 714,897 64,728
Intangible assets mEEE 17 95,720 18,602
Interests in associates N ERE R 19 104,253 101,838
Loan to an associate BE AR ER 19 25,946 28,746
Long term deposits RHEFER 720 1,756
Deposit for the acquisition of property, KEME -BEX
plant and equipment BREZE® 645,713 157,715
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 20 71,564 71,564
Deferred tax asset BEEMIBEE 28 33 42
5,532,696 2,055,995
Current assets mEEE
Inventories e 22 272,761 103,268
Prepaid lease payments FENHEEKE 16 20,137 1,424
Prepayments, deposits and ENRE -EZE R
other receivables H h & W k8 125,086 50,465
Loan receivables JlE W & X 21 27,291 7,921
Trade receivables e & 5 BR K 23 320,223 131,721
Held-for-trading investments BREXSRE KA 20 335,038 540,255
Pledged bank deposit DB ITER 24 3,651 27,523
Time deposits 7 B K 24 112,952 3,466
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTT4E 5% 24 725,937 255,290
1,943,076 1,121,333
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade payables FERE 5 R 25 130,211 139,135
Other payables and accrued liabilities HENFRER
et BB 226,614 115,862
Tax payable FE B I8 11,424 5,076
Short term portion of bank loans RITERZEHIL Y 26 1,005,362 638,065
Amount due to minority shareholder JE 1+ D S R R 2% 17,567 17,567
1,391,178 915,705
Net current assets mMEEEFE 551,898 205,628
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 6,084,594 2,261,623

59



TCC International Holdings Limited & BB EB AR A 7

Consolidated Balance Sheet

= A X ==
mEEBEBEX
At 31 December 2007 R -ZEZE+4#+_-F=+—H

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt aF FHET T

Non-current liabilities B EIN=E =
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBAE 28 147,885 2,834
Long term portion of bank loans RITERZ RIS 26 2,017,728 941,426
2,165,613 944,260
3,918,981 1,317,363

Capital and reserves &% AR K 5 1
Share capital [N 30 128,159 77,292
Reserves 1 32 3,629,569 1,108,905

Equity attributed to shareholders RAFRREG RS

of the Company 3,757,728 1,186,197
Minority interests 1 B RS BRME I 161,253 131,166
3,918,981 1,317,363

The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 155 were ~ S$58Z155B Vi a M BHEAE R ST N\F
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on At ABEESFERENEEEXR
26 March 2008.

KOO, CHENG-YUN, LESLIE WU YIH CHIN
BRI RER
CHAIRMAN MANAGING DIRECTOR
FE EFREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE-ZFEZFT+F+_A=+—HIFFE
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2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Cash flows from operating activities KEFHZREME
(Loss) profit before taxation BRELAT (B5H8) & T (3,470,678) 4,479
Adjustments for: AT AR
Depreciation of property, ME-BERKEBTE
plant and equipment 134,002 82,023
Interest expenses B MY 101,921 71,996
Interest income B A (7,370) (3,285)
Dividend income from investments ®EZREKA (22,033) (34,869)
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EHH 3,485 5083
Release of prepaid lease payments fERIENHERIE 5,373 1,271
Equity settled share-based VAR A 45 & DA R (0
payment expenses YR ZzZAX - 3,400
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEIE 3,722,639 -
Impairment loss of property, Y- BE L& E
plant and equipment AR - 8,388
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEREEZ
plant and equipment (W) EiE (534) 6
Change in fair value of T—M’Ex%ﬁﬁ cREZ
held-for-trading investments NEEEE (47,696) (12,605)
Gain on disposal of HERER SRR
held-for-trading investments ®EZ W= (5,364) (1,896)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—EEEAr 2 lE (5) -
Written back of provision 7B B FE W — R B & R A1
for amount due from an associate Fr{E 2 B = (1,500)
Share of results of associates R ER: /N o F (7,915) (10,999)
Exchange adjustments & X, 38 & (40,041) (6,381)
Operating cash inflows before movements &8 & & &2 B a1 2 K&
in working capital [ER 365,784 100,531
Increase in inventories FE LN (26,854) (74,867)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TENFRIE e REM
other receivables JE U R TE 12 N (36,255) (6,395)
Decrease in held-for-trading investments #H{EX S A% 2K E R D 258,277 102,444
Increase in trade receivables FE W E 5 BR /3% N (96,649) (63,191)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables BB SRR OB ) (49,201) 61,003
Increase in other payables and Hi e IB R EF B EG M
accrued liabilities 58,969 34,322
Cash generated from operations KEFBIRE 474,071 153,847
Income taxes paid B8R (4,360) (5,517)
Net cash generated from K TEE 2R RAFRE
operating activities 469,711 148,330
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AN B =
HERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HEZ=ZTL+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Cash flows from investing activities KERSH ReRE
Interest received B U F B 7,370 3,285
Dividend received from investments B UK E IR B 22,033 34,869
Dividend received from associates B U Bk & A B R B 7,520 3,518
Repayment of advance to an associate B & N AE BB 2,800 3,631
Purchase of property, BEWME -BELEE
plant and equipment (248,962) (200,187)
Purchase of mining rights BE R (37,914) (7,764)
Purchase of computer software BEERIM (9,414) (208)
Increase in prepaid lease payments TE A E FRIRE N (1,107) (14,150)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE -HEREE
plant and equipment Fr 18 38 1,087 1,475
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—EBE QAR 2B RIE 8 -
Deposit for the acquisition of property, WiEME - BELEREBEZIEZS
plant and equipment (645,713) (157,715)
Decrease in long term deposits EHERR L 1,036 187
Increase in time deposits 7E BRTF 5K 4% hn (22,663) (3,466)
Repayment of advance EERITEKERK
to loan receivables 7,921 -
Advance to loan receivables BYEKERK (27,291) -
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank EHEARITFEROR D (3G 0)
deposits 23,872 (14,149)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, WEWNB AR HRMESRS
net of cash acquired 307,194 -
Net cash used in investing activities KREBEEHFRAR S FE (612,223) (350,672)
Cash flows from financing activities BEFH HRERE
Interest paid BAF B (114,298) (80,819)
New bank loans raised FIBIRITER 2,397,145 1,318,618
Repayment of bank loans ERFETER (1,658,123) (982,568)
Dividends paid BEfERE - (7,729)
Dividend paid to minority interest BENALEBRRERRKRE (16,109) (3,960)
Capital contributed by B AL ERE
minority shareholder of subsidiary ZEBEARLE - 17,372
Advance from minority shareholders D BT R B R - 8,621
Proceeds from exercise of share options 17 1% 8% A% # B 15 7 18 3,190 =
Expenses on issue of shares i 15 817 B 2 (12,615) =
Net cash generated from BMEESMEREFHE
financing activities 599,190 269,535
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents F R4 RIR & S EFREE N
for the year 456,678 67,193
Cash and cash equivalents FeBRekBEEE
at beginning of year 255,290 185,676
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEERE &) 2 & 13,969 2,421
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEE MR EE
at end of year, represented by B3R & KR 1T 45 #4
Cash and bank balances 725,937 255,290
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HEZ=ZTL+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

GENERAL INFORMATION
The Company is a public listed company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Group consisted of the import
and distribution of cement in Hong Kong, the manufacture
and distribution of cement, clinker and slag powder in other
areas of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the
provision of cement handling services in the Philippines.
Through its associates, the Group is also engaged in the
production and distribution of ready-mixed concrete in Hong
Kong, PRC and Brunei. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year. Upon completion of acquisition of Chia Hsin Cement
Greater China Holding Corporation (“CHCGC”) during the
year, the Group also exports cements to the United States,
Middle East, Africa and New Zealand.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate

Information” section to the Annual Report.

The parent company of the Company is TCC International
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands). In the
opinion of the Directors, Taiwan Cement Corporation
(“T’Cement”), a company incorporated and whose shares
are listed in Taiwan, is the Company’s ultimate holding

company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”) which is also the functional currency

of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZ-ZFTE+F+-_A=+—HIFEF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new standard, amendment and interpretations
(“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 January 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) — INT 7 Applying the restatement
approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(IFRIC) - INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) — INT 9 Reassessment of embedded

derivatives
HK(IFRIC) — INT 10 Interim financial reporting and

impairment

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under
HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively. Certain
information presented in prior year under the requirements
of HKAS 32 has been removed and the relevant comparative
information based on the requirements of HKAS 1
(Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has been presented for the first

time in the current year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE - ZFEE+F+-_A=+—HIFZF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The application of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial positions for the current or
prior accounting periods are prepared and presented.

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards or interpretations that have been issued

but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial
statements’

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs’

HKFRS 8 Operating segments’

HK(IFRIC) — INT 11 HKFRS 2: Group and treasury

share transactions?

HK(IFRIC) — INT 12 Service concession
arrangements?®

HK(IFRIC) — INT 13 Customer loyalty programmes?

HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined

benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their

interaction®

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March
2007.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008.
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A MW R M

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZ-ZFTE+F+-_A=+—HIFEF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these standards or interpretations will have no material

impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the principal

accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from

its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective

date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HEZ=ZTL+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist of the
amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity
since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except
to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and

is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of business is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are

recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds
the cost of the business combination, the excess is

recognised immediately in consolidated income statement.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of

the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HEZ=ZTL+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for which
the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant business at the date of
acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any

accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet

as an intangible asset.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on

disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HE—-ZTE+F+-F=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments
in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet
at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the net assets of the associates, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for
and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in consolidated income statement.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the

Group’s interest in the relevant associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HEZ=ZTL+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course

of business, net of discounts, returns and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered

and risks and rewards of ownership have passed.

Service revenue is recognised in the period in which such

services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction
of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line

basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HE—-ZTE+F+-F=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To the
extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as

operating leases.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency, i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates,
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary
items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also

recognised directly in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HE—-ZTE+F+-F=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars using
exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during that year, in which case the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (exchange fluctuation reserve). Such
translation differences are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the exchange fluctuation

reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated

income statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BERKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HEZ=ZTL+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits scheme
including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and the
employee’s pension schemes of the respective municipal
government in various places in the PRC where the Group
operates are charged as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for
using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BERKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HEZ=ZTL+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the
profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is

also dealt with in equity.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match them with related cost. Grants
related to expense items are recognised in the same period
as those expenses are charged in the consolidated income

statement and are deducted in reporting the related expense.

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and office buildings held for use in the
production or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at their revalued amounts, being
the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that would be determined using fair values

at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BERKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HEZ=ZTL+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is credited to the land and building revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised as an
expense, in which case the increase is credited to the
consolidated income statement to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising
on revaluation of such land and buildings is dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any,
held in the land and building revaluation reserve relating to
a previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus remaining in the land and building
revaluation reserve is transferred directly to accumulated

losses.

Property, plant and equipment (other than the leasehold
land and office building and construction in progress) are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation

and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair value of
items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual

value, using straight-line method.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets

are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BERKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HEZ=ZTL+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which the

item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a

straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their
fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of such

intangible assets is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, being
their fair value at the date of the acquisition less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated

useful lives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BERKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HE—-ZTE+F+-F=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESFHE &)

(continued)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the consolidated income statement

when the assets is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable,
direct labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be

incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in consolidated income statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE - ZFEE+F+-_A=+—HIFZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are

set out below.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MW R M

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZ-ZFTE+F+-_A=+—HIFEF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated at

FVTPL on initial recognition.
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling

in the near future; or

e it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has

a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in consolidated
income statement in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in consolidated income statement
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial

assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE - ZFEE+F+-_A=+—HIFZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, loan receivables, loan to an
associate, long term deposits, time deposits, cash and bank
balances and pledged bank deposits) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any

identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL,

investments.

loans and receivables or held-to-maturity

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at each balance

sheet date subsequent to initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZ-ZFTE+F+-_A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have

been impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

e  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 90 days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HEZ=ZTL+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in consolidated income statement when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in consolidated income
statement. When trade receivables and other receivables
are considered uncollectible, they are written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to consolidated income

statement.

FESHBE &)

= )

$RITAE (&)

&

iy

SLABHEKAIEZ EMEEMS MR
BEEBEBRPAEEZRL TRIE ARE
BEEEGARBERTER UREER
EEEZRERMNEHESRERERRE
ETHREZAEMEZHZ ZHTE-

BHENKASIEZEREE REBER
BERHERREUSREEERZMS
EREHAEFRKBSREBETINRRZ
REMECHZERAE-EHREERR
TeRERERRED-

HNFALREE SREERAESE
ERFERBEmRD BREKE SRR R
H o EUCRIBRR SN UL IE R T - Bk E(E &
BRBEHERRD -BEREEEZZD
ERAWRaERTER - BERKE SRR
H A EYRIRAR ST A e - Al B A R
FR S - PARTHUEH T H & M B 2 5RIR - &5
AEFalaERe



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BERKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HE—-ZTE+F+-F=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
consolidated income statement to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest

in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability,

or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZ-ZFTE+F+-_A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Interest-bearing bank loans are initially measured at fair value,
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of
the borrowings in accordance with the Group’s accounting

policy for borrowings costs.

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and amounts due to minority shareholders are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

An obligation to issue a fixed number of the Company’s
own shares at a fixed amount is an equity instrument and
recognised in the reserve (shares to be issued). The balance
will be transferred to share capital and share premium once
shares are issued. Any excess of par value of issued shares

will be transferred to share premium.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE - ZFEE+F+-_A=+—HIFZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in

equity is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option

reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates during the
vesting period, if any, is recognised in consolidated income
statement with a corresponding adjustment to share option

reserve.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share

option reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under
that standard.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4, THREMFTEERIR

UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in note 3, management has made
various estimates based on past experience, expectations
of the future and other information. The key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2007, the carrying amount of goodwill is nil (net of
impairment loss of approximately HK$3,722,639,000). Details
of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in

note 18.

NERAEBENMEIZ FTHERR &
EEREBELR BRKREMERZ
BERELERES REEEBRERR
BOERTEMBFEEERABZREA
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AR eELSANEBRE - R-_TTLF
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by
business segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting

basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each
of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of the

business segments are as follows:

()  the import, distribution and handling of cement segment
mainly relates to housing development and infrastructure
construction activities in Hong Kong and the provision

of cement handling services in the Philippines;

(i)  the manufacture and distribution of cement and slag
powder segment mainly relates to construction activities
in PRC; and

(iii)y the investment holding segment invests in listed and
unlisted equity securities ranging from traditional
businesses, such as companies engaged in the
manufacture and distribution of construction materials, to
high-technology businesses, such as those providing

broadband internet access and content services.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based

on the location of the assets.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2EEN )
Business segments (a) EB2E
The following tables present revenue, profit and certain RAEBESE B WG B RE
asset, liability and expenditure information for the TEE BERAIERZIM T
Group’s business segments.
Manufacture
Import, and distribution
distribution and of cement, clinker
handling of cement and slag powder Investment holding Consolidated
AD-2#R RERIHKE
REKE RERBER REZR g8
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZE2E3tEF C-ZERE CZBRtE CZZERE ZBELE CTERFE ZBEBtE CZIIRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT TER FHT TER FHT TER FaT
Segment revenue RN
Sales and services HERBERE
to external customers THAEP 137,592 173,612 1,691,576 806,806 - - 1,829,168 980,418
Other revenue Hiplhz 2,319 2,824 - - 82,464 52,655 84,783 55,479
Total @t 139,911 176,436 1,691,576 806,806 82,464 52,655 1,913,951 1,035,897
Segment results PEEE 25,823 36,312 (3,508,731) (21,633 72,903 38,522 (3,410,005 53,301
Unallocated corporate AARDEFR
expenses (4,542) (5,863)
Unallocated other income & A B E 1A 37,875 18,038
(3,376,672) 65,476
Finance costs BEKE (101,921) (71,996)
Share of results of EEBERT
associates ¥R 7,915 10,999
(Loss) profit before tax WA (B8) &F (3,470,678) 4,479
Income tax expense EHRT N (2,736) (3,879)
(Loss) profit for the year A% (B8) &7 (3,473,414) 606

o
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)

Import,
distribution and

tF+ZA=+—HIFE

handling of cement

Manufacture
and distribution
of cement, clinker
and slag powder

Investment holding

Consolidated

A0 28K HERAHAE
REKE RERBER REZR
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
“2%tfE -TTAF -ZBELE -TTAF O CBEBLE -TTAF -BEtE  -TTAA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THR TR T TR THL
Assets EE
Segment assets PEEE 122,766 115,396 5,276,032 1,846,320 430,478 631,315 5,829,276 2,593,031
Interests in associates BANEES 104,253 101,838
Unallocated assets KPEREE 1,542,243 482,459
Consolidated total assets AL EE 7475772 3,177,328
Liabilities B
Segment liabilities PEAE 31,883 39,069 300,725 208,720 24217 7,208 356,825 254,997
Unallocated liabilties *PEEE 3,199,966 1,604,968
Consolidated total liabilities 44 £ & & 3,556,791 1,859,965
Other segment information: {5 & #:
Capital additions (note) ~ EARE (K #) 1,014 359 2,302,149 260,069 32,066 - 2,335,229 260,428
Depreciation and FEREH
amortisation 3,937 3,991 131,707 77,783 1,843 2,023 137,487 83,797
Impairment losses REERERERL
recognised in HEER
the consolidated
income statement - - 3,722,639 8,388 - - 3,722,639 8,388
Note: B &t -

Goodwill addition is fully impaired in the same year of 2007.

The impaired goodwill is related to segment of manufacture

and distribution of cement, clinker and slag powder.

BERER_ZZLERFEZERE
K5 54O AH R EE

7 (R
W2 EEm-
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. VaNy T A\ [y
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7 8EN @)
Geographical segments (b) WEDE
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the REBZEBUREE FEH- JFERE
PRC, Philippines and Taiwan. The Group also makes BE-AEBETEXZNERER
export sales in United States of America (“United (IZEE]) B BMEEMERE
States”), Japan, Europe and other countries. HAEE-
THE GROUP rEE
()  An analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical () AEEZRAEFZFPZMETSES
market of its customers is as follows: CEEBOTWMT
Hong Kong The PRC Philippines Taiwan United States Japan Europe Others Consolidated
5 48 #2% 43 18 £ @it it 54
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
SRRLE SREAE CRRLE CIIAT SRELE CIIAT CPRLE CIAC URLE C33AT CRAE S3IAS S$3RE SRRLE CITAE SPRAE STIAE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Tan  TEr TR TEr  TER  TEr TR TR TRR AT TR TEr  TRR  TEr TR TR TER  TEr
Segment revenue AEhE
Sales and senvices #
to external RUERKT
customers SHREF 114342 150362 1,656,399 806,806 2,250 23250 - - 9,190 7016 9,734 - 9287 - 1829168 980,418
QOther revenue EdE 2,380 2,881 26,796 11,269 80 184 55,521 4,145 - - - - - 84,783 55,479
Totel &t 116722 153243 1,683,195 818,075 2830 23434 55,521 i,145 9,190 - 7016 - 9,734 - 9287 - 1913951 1,035,897
(i) An analysis of the carrying amount of segment (i) RBEBEEEMTHRE S 2D
assets and capital additions analysed by the BERERNANE ZREES TN
geographical locations in which the assets are T
located are as follows:
Hong Kong The PRC Philippines Taiwan United States Japan Europe Others Consolidated
o8 205 4% 10 B & Pt 84
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
SRRLE STFAE CRRLE CTTAE SRRLE CTIAT CRRLE CITAE URLE CTTAT CRRLE CTTAE SURLE CTTAT CRRLE STTAE SURLE STIh
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tan  TET  FER  TET  TER  TAT  FER AR TR AT TR TET  TRR  TET TR TET  TER AT
Segment assets HBEE 88,054 91,791 5306970 1860943 61,568 46,085 372,684 594212 - - - - - - 5809216 2593031
Capital additions 558 33,080 359 2,302,149 260,069 - = - = - - - - - - 2335229 260428
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6. REVENUE

Revenue represents:

() invoiced amount of sales of cement and slag powder,

net of trade discounts, returns and sales related taxes;

and

(i) income from the rendering of services.

iy %8
E-SoF

() HREZHN RERMBEHENE
ZRERBEMHERRE Rk

(iy RERE WA

An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wz
2007 2006
—EELHF T RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHE T THET
Revenue I 25
Sales of cement, clinker $HE K PR R IEB
and slag powder 1,805,918 957,168
Rendering of services 12 1 AR 75 23,250 23,250
1,829,168 980,418
7. INVESTMENT INCOME 7. BEWA
2007 2006
—EELEHE —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T THET
Interest income B A 7,370 3,285
Dividends from listed equity EBRAEERE
investments 22,033 34,869
29,403 38,154
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INVESTMENT INCOME (continued) 7. REWA (&)
Investment income earned on financial assets, analysed by CRMEEMRNZEERALZEEERZ
category of asset, is as follows: DT
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 22,033 34,869
Loans and receivables BB e IR
(including cash and bank deposits) (BHER2RRITEH 7,370 3,285
29,403 38,154
Income recognised in respect of financial assets at fair value BAFEFABGEOREBEEREANK
through profit or loss is disclosed in note 8. AR FE8H 4 FE o
OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. HMw AR W=
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FHET
Gain on disposal of property, HEME -BELEEKS
plant and equipment 534 -
Gain on disposal of LEBHERGABRZRE ZKE
held-for-trading investments 5,364 1,896
Change in fair value of BIER SRR 2BZERFESE
held-for-trading investments 47,696 12,605
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—HEEA Rz ks 5 =
Written back of provision JE U — P Bt & R B SRR B R
for amount due from an associate - 1,500
Handling charges FEEHR 2,319 2,824
Exchange gain & X, F 26,631 10,310
Government grants BT #8 B 4,879 =
Management fee income EREBRA 900 900
Others Hith 4,927 5,328
93,255 35,363
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9.

FINANCE COSTS

9. BtE R

2007 2006
—EELEF —EETXRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T
Interest on: AR 2 #) 8

Bank loans wholly repayable BERUATHHEZHEE CRITER
— within five years —AFR 114,298 53,734
- over five years —HBBEAF - 27,085
Total borrowing costs BIEERA 114,298 80,819

Less: amounts capitalised 7)36 RERBIERFPER SR

in construction in progress (12,377) (8,823)
101,921 71,996

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
capitalisation rate of 6.29% per annum (2006: 5.72% per

annum) to expenditure on qualifying assets.

FRABAEAZEERATRE —REE
B URAERBEERNIXEF629% (=%
ERE BFL72%) WERNLL EFHE-
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10. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10.BRBEAT (B 18) & F
2007 2006
—EZLF ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
(Loss) profit before tax has been REB 2B (EE)
arrived at after charging: st A E B
Director’s remuneration (note 11) BEEMe (FaE11) 3,192 4,216
Other staff cost Hh 8 TR
Equity settled share-based DA IR R 45 & LA {9
payment expense TNZzAX - 1,500
Salaries and other benefits o MEAMER 124,685 82,035
Other pension costs and EMRAREKARBRESHK
mandatory provident
fund contributions 1,926 674

Total staff costs #®E8 TR 129,803 88,425
Cost of inventories recognised HEFE ZKAE

as expense 1,489,120 889,503
Cost of services rendered RERS 2 A 2,624 3,477
Depreciation of property, WE - -BERREITE

plant and equipment 134,002 82,023
Release of prepaid lease payments B T8 1 1 & A 5,373 1,271
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EEH 3,485 503
Auditor’s remuneration =% HUED BN & 2,902 1,647
Operating lease payments MEMEZKEHOES

in respect of rented premises 6,365 3,595
Loss on disposal of property, LEME BEREKBE2EE

plant and equipment - 6
Share of tax of associates FE (LBt E N R B 1A

(included in share of (Bt ABEREE RARER)

results of associates) 3,942 3,813
The Group has no forfeited contributions from the retirement REERZMELERRSEE 2 BRI

2

benefit scheme for both years. Ko
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 6 (2006: 7)
Directors are as follows. The other 1 Director (2006: 2

Directors) have no emoluments for the year.

MNEEREENE

EEMe
DRENRERNTRB(ZETRF L
BI)EEZMEWM T -EBR—B (ZTETR
FREB)EERAFRLETMME -

Liao Shieh,
Koo, Cheng- Poon Chih Jen-
Yun, Wu Yih Shan Huai,  Ching Kang, Chung, Total
Leslie Chin Weijian Donald Kenneth Roger 2007
h
ERAR REN EER BRE TEE #HER  ZEBLE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET THT T T FiEx THT
Fees we 200 - 200 200 200 200 1,000
Other emoluments Hit B e
Salaries and ek
other benefits Hip 28 - 1,282 - - - - 1,282
Performance related HRBHB 2
incentive bonus REEA 840 70 - - - - 910
Equity settled WRALE
share-based payment WBR 1
expense ZR% - - - - - - -
Total emoluments LM 1,040 1,352 200 200 200 200 3,192
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Koo, Cheng-
Yun, Wu Yih Shan
Leslie Chin Weijian

ERA RER ERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER

Annual Report 2007 £ %§

Hui-Bon- Liao
Hoa Pierre, Poon Chung Chih
Khien Huai,  Kuohsien, Ching Kang, Total
Piau Donald David Kenneth 2006

At

EER BAE EEAR HEE —BEAF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TET TET TET TET

Fees we 200 - 200 100 200 167 67 934
Other emoluments Hip B e
Salaries and Fek
other benefits Hip 28 - 1,282 - - - - - 1,282
Performance related HRBHBZ
incentive bonus REEL - 100 - - - - - 100
Equity settled WRALE
share-based payment WBR 1 321
expense ZH% 1,460 440 - - - - - 1,900
Total emoluments LM 1,660 1,822 200 100 200 167 67 4,216

The performance related incentive bonus is determined with

reference to the results of the Group.

ERIRAN s REEANRBEAEEEE
BE-
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Employees’ emoluments
During the year, the five highest paid individuals included
two Directors (2006: two Directors), details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the

remaining highest paid individuals are as follows:

MEEZEREEME @)

EEME
AEADLEERSHFALTEBEMBES (=
ZERE WA EFMOHIIN EXCH
BEBHFREE ZFMFEHINDT

2007 2006
—EELEF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FHET
Salaries and other benefits e R E M E A 1,870 2,229
Retirement benefits BRIRESETEIHR
scheme contributions - 12
Performance related incentive bonus B2 R IBH 85 2 BEIIEAT 763 221
Equity settled share-based PARR 72N 45 & DA RR t9
payment expense TRZHAX - 195
2,633 2,657
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HHESNFTIN&@E:

Number of employee

BEEA™
2007 2006
:E@—tﬂi —_=5 /_$
Up to HK$1,000,000 % 51,000,000/ 7T 3 S

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the Directors, supervisors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors and

supervisors has waived any remuneration during the year.

AEERAFAALERNES EFEHRH
mm A LTS SAERE DA
BAKE BB S ERBER 2 fME &
EFLESENAFARETE-
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. Fr8H X H
2007 2006
—EELF —ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Current tax: AREARRIE
Hong Kong BB 1,439 2,611
PRC Enterprise income tax REEMEH 2,302 640
Other jurisdictions HEm e AER 325 2,780
4,066 6,031
Overprovision in prior years: BEFERERE:
Hong Kong BB (333) (73)
Deferred tax (Note 28): BT IR (K at28) -
Current year REE (997) (2,085)
2,736 3,873

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%)
of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

ERMEBHIIBIBEARFE 2 et R S
AIE17.6% (ZZTERF:17.5%) 2 X
E-H R AR ZHRIB BB )

AEEBRITRERGE -
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. i 8B X (&
The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) FRZHE %Rlﬁﬁﬂiﬁiﬁi A RERA (BE)
profit per the consolidated income statement as follows: K2 BRI
2007 2006
—EZLF —ETNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
(Loss) profit before tax BRBLAT (B518) &7 (3,470,678) 4,479
Tax at the domestic income tax PAZR 3 R 15 B R 17 5% &
rate of 17.5% 2 BiIE (607,369) 784
Tax effect of share of profits JERBE AR R 2 RIS E
of associates (1,385) (1,925)
Tax effect of expenses that are not BB TE FE AR B B B N AT H0 A
deductible in determining X HMBEE
taxable profit 665,151 8,204
Tax effect of income that are not FAE TE JE AR B A B BB 2R AR R
taxable in determining taxable profit ZWAZ BB E (17,727) (12,844)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (333) (73)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KERZHMBEIBTE 1,805 15,982
Utilisation of tax losses previously BALAIARER CHIBEE
not recognised (13,821) (2,263)
Effect of tax exemptions granted FENBAREREHE 2
to PRC subsidiaries (40,380) -
Income tax on concessionary rate REENEHEZFEM (16,951) (9,856)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEERLE 2WE QA
subsidiaries operating ZTRAME &
in other jurisdictions 35,589 6,957
Others H At (1,843) (1,093)
Tax expense for the year AEFIEBEZ H 2,736 3,873

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are exempted from PRC
Enterprise Income Tax for two years starting from their first
profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction for the

next three years.

REPEBEBZEZEZEER AAFZHEH
MEBAREEEENFEREEMNFRR
P BESEMSH MBE% = FER ¥
B R e
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12.

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

In addition to the income tax expense charged to
consolidated income statement, a deferred tax charge of
HK$1,060,000 (2006: HK$62,000) has been recognised in

equity in the year.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the
PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Order
No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007,
the State Council of the PRC issued Implementation
Regulations of the New Law. The New Law and
Implementation Regulations will change the tax rate from
33% to 25% for all PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008.
Other than the effect on current tax change, the Directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of the New
Law will have no material impact on the results or financial
position of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007.
Enterprises that are currently entitled to exemption or
reductions from the standard income tax rate for a fixed
term (such as tax holidays) would continue to enjoy such

treatment until the fixed term expires, but not beyond 2012.

12. Fr 18
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B o

B B4R A W e %Fﬂuﬁﬁfz& s H AN
1,060,000/ 7T (Z T T NE: 62,0008
TT) ZIEER B X B R A F E AR AR AN

>
o

R-ZEZLF=A+ B FERETEH
TRLENTZRBEMHRTPRESEMSH
E(MFBOE]) - RZBBLF+ AR
B BB B M T ¥R E b A Rl - AR T
MEREERMAMR A -_TTENF—A—
B Pra T B E LR 2B XK H33%
FHEE25% ° BRAMBIAZ S 2 FEI K
NEEERY ERAFTHESTEHARE
EREZ_ZT+F+_A=+—HIHF
BZRERUBRRAELEEATZE -RE
REIEHRA (R ) EHR 2 A R 2T
EFRENEZCXMEBZERETE
BEEEHRERBL ETBEE T —
Z 4o

DIVIDENDS 13.[R B
2007 2006
—EBLHF ZETREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Dividend recognised as distribution ~ FRAERAEZE DK S :
during the year:
Final dividend for the year ended #HZE_ZTZEAXF+_A=+—H
31 December 2006: nil JtiJ*Z?EHHH“ 8 — & - 7,729

(2005: HK1 Cent) per share

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment

of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007.

EFETERARNBE_TTLF+_H
=t—HLEFEZRHEKRR-
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14.LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
the shareholders of the Company is based on the following

data:

14.BRE#E

ARREREHEERERNERIREAT

BURAtHE:

2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Loss for the purposes of AEERERNBEMACER
basic loss per share
Loss for the year attributable KRRz RREERFEBE
to shareholders of the Company (3,506,645) (18,303)
Number of shares Bk 0 2 B
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
’000 000
Fr Tt
Weighted average number of AEERERNEBEMAZ
ordinary shares for the purposes of I3 A% A0 #E 15 AR B
basic loss per share 867,654 772,922
No dilutive loss per share has been presented for the years BHRITEERERSIB ST LFR=F

ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 because the exercise
of share options would result in a decrease in the loss per
share in 2007 and 2006.

EREZEREBERS KA BE2IEBE
—ERFER-_TERFTA=1+—H
HFEEzEREEERHT-
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZ-ZFTE+F+-_A=+—HIFEF

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.ME-BERRE
Cement  Leasehold Furniture,
plant land and fixtures
and office  Plantand  and office Motor Construction
facilities building  machinery  equipment vehicles Lighters in progress Total
BR-RE
Kl HELHER REAE

R%fE HOZET REREE B4 nE B ERIR a2y
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TAT TAL TR TEL TR TEL T TEL

COST OR VALUATION BASfEE
As at 1 January 2006 RZZER5-A-H 298,050 15,100 302,263 18,083 6,646 7,731 908,431 1,556,304
Exchange adjustments ERAE 9,856 - 9,747 156 164 - 27,253 47,176
Additions RE 5,367 - 12,307 1,430 484 - 207543 247,131
Surplus on revaluation EffEH - 300 - - - - - 300
Disposals HE - - (10,550) (786) - - - (11,336)
Transfers EEE 318,189 - 712546 - - - (1,030,735) -
At 31 December 2006 RZZEX5+ZA=1+-A 631,462 15,400 1,026,313 18,883 7,294 7,731 132,492 1,839,575
Exchange adjustments Ex@E 63,565 - 107,730 1,489 536 - 10,060 183,380
Additions RE 1,425 = 14,886 541 589 - 401,613 419,054
Acquired on acquisition of WERBARME

subsidiaries 601,280 - 1,184,257 8,546 3314 - 7,648 1,805,045
Surplus on revaluation EffBH - 5,300 - - - - - 5,300
Disposals e (402) - (5) (292) (480) - - (1,179
Transfers wE 21,521 - 10,203 515 - - (32,239) -
At 31 December 2007 K-Z2+%+=-A=1+-A8 1,318,851 20,700 2,343,384 29,682 11,253 7,731 519,574 4,251,175
Comprising: 23

At cost KA fE 1,318,851 - 2,343,384 29,682 11,253 7,731 519,574 4,230,475

At valuation 2007 —ZTLERE - 20,700 - - - - - 20,700

1,318,851 20,700 2,343,384 29,682 11,253 7,731 519,574 4,251,175

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION B HERFE

AND IMPAIRMENT
As at 1 January 2006 RZZEx5-A-H 42,582 - 84,844 8,063 3,120 7,653 - 146,262
Exchange adjustments ERAE 1,326 - 2,204 183 58 - - 37
Provided for the year REFRE 20,540 2,018 56,111 2,272 1,082 = = 82,023
Impairment loss recognised REBERBRZAEESR

in the income statement 8,388 - - - - - - 8,388
Elimination on revaluation Ayl - (2,018) - - - - = (2,018)
Elimination on disposals HEBE - - (9,080) (775) - - - (9,855)
At 31 December 2006 RZBERE+-A=1-H 72,836 - 134,079 9,743 4,260 7,653 - 28571
Exchange adjustments ERAE 5,745 - 9,482 621 227 - - 16,075
Provided for the year REFRE 32,858 697 96,609 2,694 1,144 = = 134,002
Elimination on revaluation ELpar] - (697) L = = = = (697)
Elimination on disposals & (16) - @ (258) (350) - - (626)
At 31 December 2007 R-ZE+5+=A=t+-AH 111,423 - 240,168 12,800 5,281 7,653 - 377,325
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2007 R-BE+%+-A=1+-AH 1,207,428 20,700 2,103,216 16,882 5,972 78 519,574 3,873,850
At 31 December 2006 RZZEAE+=A=1+-A 558,626 15,400 892,234 9,140 3,034 78 132,492 1,611,004
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
The following rates are used for the deprecation of property,

plant and equipment:

15.ME-HERRKE 4

[Uﬂ%

3'/5% - 4%

Over the unexpired term

Cement plant and facilities
Leasehold land and

of lease
6%/3% — 20%

office buildings

ME - BERSEBRAITEXRNT:

VIO S & qiid] 3% — 4%

HETHWE EHAOKXRREM
MAEETF F 5

% 5 K i 23 62/3% — 20%

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and 20% - 33"/3%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

Lighters 10%

Included in construction in progress is interest capitalised
of approximately HK$12,377,000 (2006: HK$8,823,000).

In 2006, the Directors conducted a review of the Group’s
manufacturing assets and determined that a number of those
assets were impaired, due to closure of one of the production
lines. Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$8,388,000 have
been recognised in respect of buildings, which are used in
the manufacture and distribution of cement, clinker and slag

powder segment.

During the year, the Group acquired the property, plant and
equipment on acquisition of subsidiaries. The property, plant
and equipment was fair valued on 31 October 2007 at
HK$1,805,045,000 by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited,
an independent firm of qualified professional valuers, at open

market value on existing use basis.

RM-EER 20% — 33'/3%
RE 20%
2 M 10%

FAEEZEIRZERLELIN BN A
12,377,000/ 7T (ZZ & ;X4 : 8,823,000
HEIT) °

R-TERF EFFHNAEEREEE
WRABREEBAEF —REERME
BEBEAELRRE B AERERS
WAR A RBEN DA EB BEAE
F 2R B 5 18 58,388,000/ T ©

FRNAEBEKREHRBAR 2 ER I
BYE BERRER-_ZETLFT+A=
+—H -BIEERBEEMGET SN
BEMNMGERARADNARRAREAR
MEHME BERREETRITHE A
& &1,805,045,0005% 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE - ZFEE+F+-_A=+—HIFZF

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The leasehold land and office building is situated in Hong
Kong under long term leases and was revalued on 31
December 2007 at HK$20,700,000 (2006: HK$15,400,000)
by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited, an independent firm of
qualified professional valuers, at open market value on
existing use basis. The resulting surplus arising from the
revaluation at 31 December 2007 of HK$5,997,000 (2006:
HK$2,318,000) was dealt with in the land and building
revaluation reserve. Had there not been any revaluation of
this property, its carrying amount at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses at 31 December
2007 would be HK$298,000 (2006: HK$299,000).

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

15.

16.

Annual Report 2007 & 3R

M -BEREE #)

BYABEREXGEMPERTARAD

RZETLF+=—R=+— E;WEHE
BROABEOURESZHET RPN E
BF RERARABRARAMEEMGRA
20,700,000/ 7t (ZZFZ 7<% : 15,400,000
BL) RZTTLF+-_A=+—HBZE
it B 55,997,000 70 (ZET N F:
2,318,000 7T) ' ER L RIEFE G
BREE-- I EE L MEFELER R
ETEF+ A=+ —HBZRAREER
ZEH T E R AR A B 18 1% 1% /298,000
B (ZZ T /N 299,000 7T) °

BANHEERE
rEBEZENHRERESE:

2007 2006
—EBLHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong 7 R & /& B4 AR HRF 49
Medium-term lease HEZ T 735,034 66,152

Analysed for reporting purposes as: S iT1E2 A &

Current portion PR 20,137 1,424
Non-current portion JEAREIER 714,897 64,728
735,034 66,152

L7



108

TCC International Holdings Limited & BB EB AR A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BERKRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HEZ=ZTL+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. 8 EE
Customer  Computer Mining
Goodwill base software rights Total
HE EFEE EKaH R ag
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FEL FEL FEL FTEL TEL
COST BA&
At 1 January 2006 RZEERF—HA—H - - - 11,039 11,039
Additions NE - - 206 7,764 7,970
Exchange adjustments RS - - - 330 330
At 31 December 2006 RZEERF+=A=+—H - - 206 19,133 19,339
Additions RE - - 9,414 37,914 47,328
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WENBLRARELE 3,722,639 31,901 - - 3,754,540
Exchange adjustments RS - - 4 1,425 1,429
At 31 December 2007 R-ZZZ+F+ZA=+-H 3,722,639 31,901 9,624 58,472 3,822,636
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BHERAEE
At 1 January 2006 RZEERE—A—A - - - 228 228
Charge for the year KEEHH - - - 503 503
Exchange adjustments fE N B - _ _ 6 6
At 31 December 2006 R-ZZEEAF+-_A=+—H - - - 737 737
Charge for the year AEEHH - 1,131 947 1,407 3,485
Impairment loss on goodwill HERNEEBRE 3,722,639 - - - 3,722,639
Exchange adjustments EHRAE - - - 55 55
At 31 December 2007 R-EZLE+-A=+—-RH 3,722,639 1,131 947 2,199 3,726,916
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2007 R-EZ+t&+-A=+-H - 30,770 8,677 56,273 95,720
At 31 December 2006 RZFEAF+=A=+—H 3 = 206 18,396 18,602

The intangible assets are amortised over their estimated

useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the following

rates per annum:

Customer base
Mining rights

Computer software

21.3%
2%
20%

BREEREMGIRFHANERER
PRS- Fk

EFER
et T
B

21.3%
2%
20%
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18.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

As explained in note 5, the Group uses business segments
as its primary segment for reporting segment information.
During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$3,722,639,000 in
relation to goodwill arising on acquisition of CHCGC (the
“Acquisition”). For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill set out in note 17 has been allocated to one
individual cash generating unit (“CGU”), Chia Hsin Jingyang
Cement Company Limited (“*JCC”) (renamed to “Jurong TCC
Cement Co., Limited” with effect from 14 March 2008), a
subsidiary of CHCGC, engaged in manufacturing and
distribution of cement, clinker and slag powder segment.
The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) as at 31 December 2007 allocated to a
CGU is nil (20086: nil).

As detailed in note 29, a goodwill of HK$3,722,639,000
arose from the Acquisition, which was mainly attributed by
the substantial increase in the share price of the Company
between 11 June 2007 (being the latest applicable trading
date for the Company’s press announcement of the
Acquisition on 14 June 2007) and the share prices on (i) 16
October 2007 (being the date when the Acquisition became
unconditional) and (ii) 30 October 2007 (being the date when
the Group acquired not less than 90% of the disinterested
parties), respectively. The recoverable amount of the CGU
which is calculated by discounting the expected cash flow
generated from the CGU was lower than the carrying amount
of the CGU. As a result, the amount in excess of the
recoverable amount of the CGU is fully provided for in the
year. In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy in
note 3, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the goodwill. At 31 December 2007, the
Directors of the Company are of the view that there is no
significant additional impairment on the carrying amount of
the CGU.
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18. 7 &R B 8 =

AN FESETRE L NREB A XK HBIER
EROVPBFERZEFENE - RBEE-ZT
+F+_A=Z+—HALFER KNEEG
WHECHCGC ([WIE=1E]) FTEE 2 M2
SRR (B E5 18 3,722,639,000/8 TL ° BIHEST
WMERR HF17HE s HEBEEESE T
—EBIReELEBEN([REELSE
fi2]) ZFREKEERAF ([JCCI) -
(BZZZN\F=A+tMBERSEA[OA
BRIKEBRAR]) #ZAEA/CHCGCZ
—FRENR AR RBEN EERLH
ZHBRAR HER-_TZTLF+=_A=
T-BZEREE (MR EREEE) i
EReEFAEMNZBART (ZTETNF:
Z)o

BANM 20T M WEREEE
3,722,639, ooo;‘%ﬁi%ﬂ“ﬂﬁé:
TZELFRA+T—H (K2
i/\ﬂerEJFIJ%%H&%%IE%&%?THZ 18

BERXRZH)LHIZEZELF+A+ARH
(WEEERAEKGZA) RH=ZZTT £
FHA=Z+HB (REEKETDRI0%E
MEBERNMZAB) ZREXE AR
ReEEB I REIEE GRBYHKRE
REeEXBEUZERREREBETHET
NHE) BERZBRCELBU REEBE B
- BEaReEEBNREHELE
RAFER BB RGBT I3 E A%
B e BOR Y REBBETY M)
OB ZEAE - RZZTLF+ A
=+—H ARRAEERR ReEL BN
Z AREE N R E K REINEAE -

—ET+

—7?
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE - ZFEE+F+-_A=+—HIFZF

18.

19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN 19.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 18.

(continued)

The basis of the recoverable amount of the above CGU and

its major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined

based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses

cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved

by management covering a 5-year period, and discount rate

of 10.6%. JCC’s cash flows beyond the 5-year period are

extrapolated for 20 years using a steady 3% growth rate.

This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth

forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth

rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the

value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash

inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross

margin, such estimation is based on the unit’'s past

performance and management’s expectations for the market

development. Management believes that any reasonably

possible change in any of these assumptions would not

cause the aggregate carrying amount of JCC to exceed the

aggregate recoverable amount of JCC.

TO AN ASSOCIATE

BEREANR #)

tHReELABU A REBERETE
MHEARKRZEER AW T

B3R @ B A4 B 2 AT U B Bl RE DR R E AR
BEAEREBEE -ZAEREAEARR
EEEMLEREHESFIMBKEE

REeRETAR AK10.6% 2 T E-JCC
REF 2 18 2R & REN20F N 11E3%
CREHREHE WIEREDENIAH
TEZEBREAEL BTBBABITE
ZEH R ERR -HBE RS R

SRE R EREBEFESEZEIER
BREEEEHEHEREN 2SR TRE
ZEURAARAREEEHMSGERZ
HiE L - EIBEMRE LS ERRRKRAD

EREMAIGEEREBE8 T TE8H
JCCZ BRI 48 A B JCC 2 7 Uy B 48 2X

&
i}
s
ol
=

K
Pe
&
i}
s
]
il
pal

2007 2006
= gg ‘t ﬂi A i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHET
Cost of investments in associates B N A 2 B KA
Unlisted =12 |2 55,343 55,343
Share of post-acquisition profit, BRI EER 2R T REE
reserves and net of (kB W E)
dividends received 48,910 46,495
104,253 101,838
Loan to an associate iR /NI~ 25,946 28,746
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19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN
TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
The loan to an associate is interest-free, unsecured and will

not be repaid within one year from the balance sheet date.

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2007 and

2006 are as follow:

Annual Report 2007 & 3R

10.BEATIRERBEATER
(%)
BEATERARE MIEHEETER
HERR—FNEE

RIBEELFR-_EENF+_A=+—
BEAREFEZHBE AT HBEHNDT:

Place of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation ownership voting
Name of associate and operation interest power held Principal activity
& it X 3L BEREZ FriF
BERNAERE Re&EiE ke i RERLH FEXK
Quon Hing Concrete Hong Kong 50% 50%  Production and
Company Limited BB distribution of
(“Quon Hing”) ready-mixed
IR T AR A A concrete
([E®E]) HEERDHETE
HORE T
Hong Kong Concrete Hong Kong 31.5% 31.56%  Production and
Company Limited B distribution of
BILRELTERA A ready-mixed
concrete
TEHBRELT
Kenic Investment British Virgin Islands/ 40% 40%  Investment
Holdings Limited Hong Kong holding
BHREER RBRABE/BE REER
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19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN 10.BENAIERRBEEQATER
TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued) (#)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s AEBHBERAR U BEERNBENT:

associates is set out below:

2007 2006

—EBLHF AN

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FERT FHT

Total assets 1 E E 558,854 566,844

Total liabilities BweE (306,480) (322,470)

Net assets BERE 252,374 244,374
Group’s share of associates’ AEEEHELNRCEEFSR

net assets 104,253 101,838

Revenue WA 589,519 687,129

Profit for the year KFEm A 22,597 25,060

Group’s share of profit of AEEGEBELFZ
associates for the year K F[Z % K 7,915 10,999
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20. INVESTMENTS 20. k&
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
Unlisted equity securities FEETRAZSH 71,564 71,564
Held-for-trading investments BEXZHEZEZRE
Listed securities EWES
Equity securities listed REB LM RAEBS EME
in Hong Kong, at market value 30,939 14,623
Equity securities listed elsewhere, REMB T FH 2 RS E.
at market value BmE 289,911 509,465
320,850 524,088
Quoted investment funds, EEBRAEES RATAE
at fair value 14,188 16,167
335,038 540,255
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
The above unlisted investments represent investments in A EIELETIZRBERRREBRAETMAK

unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in Hong Kong and Taiwan. They are measured
at cost less impairment at each balance sheet date because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant

that the Directors of the Company are of the opinion that

-

their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

=g

A

B REE

T2 RAEBET 2 ETRAES R
B AR AR E 3 8 R
BARATEZ GHREFFER Bl
ARAEERARSE 2 AT AT TFL
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20. INVESTMENTS (continued)

21.

Held-for-trading investments

The fair value of the held-for-trading investments is
determined based on the quoted market prices available on
the relevant exchanges or prices provided by financial

institution.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group held about 0.74%
(2006: 1.29%) of the issued common stocks of Far EasTone
Telecommunications Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in
Taiwan and is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation. The listed stocks are carried at market value
and are included in held-for-trading investments as at the

balance sheet date.

20. & (&)

REXZREZRE
NEFERZRE 2 RE 2 R HEIRE
HEXZAARTHEEABREBEE
etttz BIREE -

REER AEEFE -V G ETMK
YIWREBEBFRXZH LM ZRA Far
EasTone Telecommunications Co., Ltd..Z
EBETEBABROD0T4%(ZFEE X
F:1.29%) REEB B EmRHZRT
BIR YEAARERXRSAGRZKRE

LOAN RECEIVABLES 21. EWE K
2007 2006
—ETLHF —EE N
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Variable-rate loan receivables FEBXREWER 27,291 7,921

As at 31 December 2007, the loan receivables include
RMB17,653,000 (equivalent to HK$18,780,000) and
RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to HK$8,511,000) variable rate
loans with reference to the benchmark loan rate of financial
institutions set by the PRC maturing on 30 November 2008
and 27 September 2008 respectively. The loan receivables

have an effective interest rate of 6.94% per annum.

As at 31 December 2006, the loan receivable include a
RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to HK$7,921,000) variable rate
loan with reference to the benchmark loan rate of financial
institutions set by the PRC maturing on 27 September 2007.
The loan receivable has an effective interest rate of 5.76%

per annum.

RZEBEE+F+_A=+—H EBREX
ZEBEH Rl B ARA17,653,000T (FBE
$18,780,000% 7T.) & A K ¥8,000,0007T
(FHE#8,511,000% 7T) * TR EHEHK
EZEBBEERELERNE 2 8 B8Rt
B HHASRAESENGFt+—A=+
BE_ZTEZENFALA-_t+tRA-EBREXR
ZEBRBEXREF6.94% -

RZBZAF+_A=1+—H0 BKEX
2 & %A ARMS,000,000T (HE R
7,921,000 ) - NRBEFREREZ®
BMMBEBEREEN R ZHEET L5
HEAZZTETLFNAZT LR -EKE
HZEBREBEREFL76% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE - ZFEE+F+-_A=+—HIFZF
INVENTORIES 22. 7 &
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Raw materials and consumables EM R RS S 221,933 63,421
Work in progress EER 15,903 14,091
Finished goods SURY m 34,925 25,756
272,761 103,268
TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. BN E 5 IR
2007 2006
:§§t¢ :¥%f¢
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
The Group’s trade receivables REBEKRE ZERBE:
comprise:
Trade receivables from outsiders EUMINAANLEZEFERR 289,653 122,502
Trade receivables from associates Bl E N NA B SERN 6,298 9,219
Trade receivables JEWREAT 2B ZERZK (M)
from related parties (note) 24,272 -
320,223 131,721
Note: The related parties refer to the subsidiaries of one of the B ez - BEATEARR—NEFERREZ

major shareholder of the Company.

R
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HEZ=ZTL+F+=-A=+—HIFFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Before accepting any new customers with credit limit, the
Group assesses the historical background and credibility
which are available in the market. The credit limit will be
based on the result of research. Credit limit will be reviewed
once a year. More than 85% of the trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired is recovered within three
months after the balance sheet date. No provision has been
made for the trade receivables as at 31 December 2007
(20086: nil).

The Group’s policy is to allow a credit period of 90 days to
its trade customers (including associates and related parties).
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the

balance sheet date:

23.EWE ZERF (&)

REMETAEERKREZAEL A A
SEEFETETARSZELERRE
AKF-BRRBRESREATEREET A
SESeEFEN —ARRRERBE - BB
85% 2 FE W B 5 BR TR BE AR 38 HA OR 3 AR
B EgREERR=-EARKE R _-F
ZHFE+_A=+—H rEELTERE
WE ZERFIELEMEE (ZTTREF:
®)-

AEERRETESIREFP (BRBEAT
NEEAL) R ZRER-UTREER
FEW B 5 BR 3R B iie 0 4T

2007 2006

—gBLE —TTH
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR
0 - 90 days 0-90H 281,158 120,476
91 - 180 days 91 - 180H 39,065 10,943
181 — 365 days 181 - 365H = 302
320,223 131,721

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$39,065,000 (2006:
HK$11,245,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The average age of these receivables is 135 days (2006:
139 days).

REFBEWEZESRBRBERIERNTREH
HAE i@ HA BR T 48 %8 539,065,000 7T (=
T TN 11,245,000 70) 2 FEUWGRIA -
FULAEEW BEARREEE AKEN
Mt E M AREE R A R HEIR o £l UK
Hz FHEREK A1358 (ZEZ X4 :139
E-
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23.

24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

Annual Report 2007 & 3R

23.EWWE SRR (&)
DBMERELHEERESER>

impaired IR
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHE T THET
91 — 180 days 91 - 180H 39,065 10,943
181 - 365 days 181 — 3650 = 302
Total 5t 39,065 11,245

The Group will provide fully for any receivables over 365
days because historical experience is such that receivables
that are past due beyond 365 days are generally not

recoverable.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties

and customers.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSIT/TIME DEPOSITS

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of

three months or less, which carry at market interest rates.

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.72% to 1.53% (2006: 0.72%) per annum. The
pledged bank deposit and time deposits carry fixed interest
rate ranged from 0.81% to 3.87% (2006: 0.72%) per annum.
The pledged bank deposit will be released upon the

settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

Majority of the cash and bank balances were denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is not a freely convertible currency
in the international market. The RMB exchange rate is
determined by the Government of the PRC and the
remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
exchange restrictions imposed by the Government of the
PRC.

REEGLERI65R 2 EAEKRFIAER
BAHREE REARBEESL LR BHB
#3650 2 & YR — AR 1 AU Bl -

AEBVTEEREPZEERR HAR
DHRREHFHIREP

24 BERBITHER BEFRT
FROEHER
ReRRTEBEEAEEREL RS R
FA=@ARSR=EA 28 ETSF
X382 RITE R

IRITRABRIRE BTSN ENFEF0.72%
F1.53% 2B (ZEZRF0.72%) 5T B>
B M IRITF KR E B SR E E R &0
T HF081%E387TH (=TT N F:
0.72%) st B-BEBRITFFIBNEESR
BRITIE BB BRI

Rty 2B RBITEHRBIAAREF
B mMARELAARBEERETS LML
B N\REEXEZHTBERNEE MZF
FRIRE o BIRIMA R BIBUT 3 A0 2 b
FEE R 1 T AR R
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25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. BEHE SRR
The Group’s trade payables comprise: AEERENESRERBE:
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Trade payables to outsiders ERINRALTZE SRR 116,769 106,766
Trade payables to JENKRIER AR ZE SRR
ultimate holding company 10,225 29,526
Trade payables to ENRAMNBRARZESER
fellow subsidiaries 467 524
Trade payables to minority JEN—RHBEARLEBRRZ
shareholders of a subsidiary EHER 2,750 2,319
130,211 139,135
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the UWTNEREEBZENESRAZEKRE Y
balance sheet date: -
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERX
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
0 - 90 days 0 -90H 110,567 135,072
91 - 180 days 91 - 180H 2,281 1,725
181 — 365 days 181 - 365H 11,481 1,357
Over 365 days H#i@365H 5,882 981
130,211 139,135
The trade balances due to the ultimate holding company, EANREERAR REMBAR -WBA
fellow subsidiaries and minority shareholders of subsidiary ALHEBRRZEGEBRAERR 2B R
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable in accordance BEREFSESHEREE-

with normal trading terms.
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26. BANK LOANS 26.8R1TE X
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Bank loans RITER 3,023,090 1,579,491
Secured B 675,885 -
Unsecured AR 2,347,205 1,579,491
3,023,090 1,579,491
The loans are repayable as follows:  FKIBEZHW T :
On demand or within one year R—FREEREERE 1,005,362 638,065
More than one year but BB —FETBR_F
not exceeding two years 912,030 112,176
More than two years but HBRA-FEIBRAASF
not exceeding five years 1,105,698 268,369
More than five years BB AF - 560,881
3,023,090 1,579,491
Less: Amount due for settlement B AR—FRNEEZRE
within one year GIRRBEREET)
(shown under current liabilities) (1,005,362) (638,065)
Amount due for settlement AR —FRER ZFIE
after one year 2,017,728 941,426
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE - ZFEE+F+-_A=+—HIFZF

26. BANK LOANS (continued) 26. RITE MR (4)
The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies AEBZUEBEBREE 2IHEEE LI
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group ZEBHBEZEENT

entities are set out below:

us
HK$ dollars
BT Ep
000 000
T T
(HK dollar
equivalent)
(BLTEE)
As at 31 December 2007 R_ZEZE+tE+_A=+—H 99,357 795,484
As at 31 December 2006 R-_EBEXRF+A=+—H 138,420 55,931
The bank loans of the Group are variable-rate loans which AEEZRTERBEFHEEXRER L
carry interest with reference to Hong Kong Interbank Offered EREBRITAEFERPEARBITATH
Rate and benchmark loan rates of financial institutions set EZ BB EREERNEGT B -
by The People’s Bank of China.
As at the balance sheet date, the Group has the following REER AEBEETI W ARRER G
undrawn borrowing facilities: BEEE:
2007 2006
—EBLF —ZEERXR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Floating rate Ayl SN
— expiring within one year —R—FRNE® 328,984 131,879
— expiring beyond one year —R—FRER 561,251 33,663
890,235 165,542
27. AMOUNT DUE TO MINORITY 27. B DR RAKIE
SHAREHOLDER
The amount due to minority shareholder is interest-free, ERLEBRREFRBENEE ERKBEERE
unsecured and repayable on demand. SKEF(EE -
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28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/ASSET

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) asset

Annual Report 2007 & 3R

28. EEBERE EE
ARERAFRUGFERRZ BRI

recognised by the Group and the movements thereon during ME(AE) EERAEHNT
the current and prior years.
Fair value

adjustment  Accelerated  Revaluation

on business tax  of land and

combination depreciation building Others Total

RS
X4 mE T#HR
NTERE  RBENE  BTER At @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FEL FHET FET FiEr
At 1 January 2006 RZTZ ¥—-H—H - (299) (2,473) (2,043) (4,815)
Credit to income statement FAERKEE (HiF12)
for the year (note 12) - - - 2,085 2,085
Charge to equity R & A = - (62) - (62)
At 31 December 2006 RZZEEAE+ZA=1+—8 - (299) (2,535) 42 (2,792)
Credit (charge) to income statement FANRE) FRkER
for the year (note 12) (Kaz12) 884 - 122 9) 997

Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHB DA (144,997) - - - (144,997)
Charge to equity RRAERTOR - - (1,060) - (1,080)
At 31 December 2007 R-EE+t§+-A=1+-H (144,113) (299) (3,473) 33 (147,852)

(%]
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28.

29.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/ASSET

(continued)

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$69,717,000
(2006: HK$138,747,000) available for offset against future
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Tax losses brought forward from prior years
of approximately HK$365,000 (2006: HK$6,109,000) have
been expired in current year. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are losses of approximately HK$9,456,000 (2006:
HK$87,384,000) that will expire in the period from 2008 to
2012.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Group acquired 97.03% of the issued share capital of
Chia Hsin Cement Greater China Corporation (“CHCGC”)
on 16 October 2007 and further receive not less than 90%
of the Disinterested shares (all the CHCGC Shares other
than those held by the Company and parties acting in
concert with the Company) to proceed with compulsory
acquisition of the entire outstanding issued share capital of
CHCGC on 30 October 2007 for total consideration of
HK$5,923,252,000. This acquisition has been accounted
for using the purchase method. The amount of goodwill

arising as a result of the acquisition was HK$3,722,639,000.

28.

29.

EERIERE EE #)

REE 2 FHIEE B 469,717,000 7T (=
T TN 138,747,000/ 7T) AT 4 AR K
FHE 85 o B PO SR AR g ) SRR EE DA FEORI - B 1t
WERZEEERRAEEHNBEEE LT
FEASE 2 BT E1849365,0008 7T (= F
TN 6,109,000 7T) ERAFEim 8
TR R MR IEE 18 2 B8 49,456,000
Bt (ZZZ/54F: 87,384,000 7T) * R
—EENFEZT——FHER-

WEE K 2 A
AEBR_ZTTELFTA+NAKE
KR (RE)ZERRKRSERA A
([CHCGCJ) 2 97.03%E 3 {7 B A I 7
TETEEF+A=ZFTHEBARRETOR
Q% EFEBERN (KRAFREARRQF]
—HITE A T F B 2 CHCGCRR 7 A s 2
FT 5 CHCGCR 17 ) JA # 48 3% #I 1 Ug B8
CHCGCZ #B AR U v B BITIRA - AR
{8 55,923,252,000/8 7L 2 EHK B E F A
BEZA AR ARBEEEMELE HES
%8 53,722,639,000/8 It °
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. REEMI B 1~ 7] ()

The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the goodwill ZRPTBESFEERMELE ZHENDN
arising, are as follows: ™
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
before Fair value
combination adjustments Fair value
EBtATH
BAZ
RESHE NEERAE AFE
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
FAET FET FET
Net assets acquired: s 3EE:
Property, plant and equipment (Note) 1% M &E N &
(Ktat) 1,777,516 27,529 1,805,045
Prepaid lease payments (Note) TR HEERIE (K7F) 143,940 520,556 664,496
Intangible assets (Note) EmVEE (K&) - 31,901 31,901
Inventories FE 142,639 - 142,639
Trade and other receivables EWE SRR R
H th i U 51 IE 130,219 - 130,219
Time deposits EHER 86,823 - 86,823
Cash and bank balances Re RiRITHEH 346,092 - 346,092
Bank loans HITER (723,672) - (723,672)
Trade and other payables BNESERR
H b JlE - 3R IR (92,060) - (92,060)
Tax payable FE ST B IR (6,975) - (6,975)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIBBAEE - (144,997) (144,997)
1,804,522 434,989 2,239,511
Goodwill kS 3,722,639
Total consideration wWHRE 5,962,150
Total consideration satisfied by: BREZZMAR:
Issuance of new shares BITHRMD 5,923,252
Direct expenses paid in connection ~ FUWBEM B A X2
with acquisition of subsidiaries BEERX 38,898
Total consideration WA E 5,962,150
Cash and bank balances acquired TS ETERERS 346,092
Direct expenses paid in connection  FLUWEM B A R X2
with acquisition of subsidiaries BERY (38,898)
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition FtFTEEESIE & R IETT
in respect of cash and bank HEeRim s WEEE 1R
balances acquired FrELZRE
A 307,194

23
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Note: The fair value of the customer base, together with the
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments of CHCGC are determined by an independent
appraiser, Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, at the

acquisition date.

In the acquisition of CHCGC, the Company issued 0.4545
ordinary shares for each CHCGC ordinary share as a

consideration.

From the date of proposed acquisition on 14 June 2007 to
16 October 2007, the Company had received acceptances
of open offer in respect of approximately 1,108,928,000
CHCGC shares. The Company issued approximately
504,008,000 ordinary shares to shareholders of CHCGC.
The fair value of the ordinary shares of the Company,
determined using the published price available at the date
of the acquisition on 16 October 2007, amounted to
HK$ 5,745,691,000, representing HK$11.4 per share (“Batch
A”).

From 17 October 2007 to 30 October 2007, the Company
further received the acceptances of open offer in respect of
4,720,000 CHCGC shares. The Company issued 2,145,000
ordinary shares to shareholders of CHCGC. The fair value
of the ordinary shares of the Company, determined using
the published price available at the date of the acquisition
on 30 October 2007 for the relevant CHCGC’s shares,
amounted to HK$ 24,667,000, representing HK$ 11.5 per
share (“Batch B”).

29. IR K B 2 A

i 5t EEEARNEKERH A TEER
CHCGCZ Mm% BE k& # A R
78 & FRIE TY B B N7 B AP A A
BEFHBHRARQAEE-

?M&z B CHCGCIM & ' N2 R 8£170.4545%
BREAWESKRCHCGCE B 2K
’fg o

NEBWEBH _TTLFA+HEBE
E_TTHFFTATAB - RATEHRD
1,108,928,000/% CHCGCH 17 Ut 2| A i
MEH AN AA B MCHCGCHR R #H1T4Y
504,008,000 EiBR - AN AR EBR 2 A
TE(EAKERHE-_ZETLF+A+ X
Hz A ES2AHRWMWEET) R
5,745,691,000% 7T - HE R FR11.48 T
(TA#t]) -

W_EE+LFTAT+EHE_ZTZTLF T
AR=+8 A&X2a 2547200008
CHCGCR 5 BRI B ARBEMEL - AR

Al 2 [AICHCGCHR 3 % 172,145,000/% & i@
B AR R RIE @A 2 AFE (fF AUKE B 5
T EF+ A=+ HBEBEBCHCGCK
P2z Al S AR EEE) 724,667,000
B HEERER11.58 7T (IBH#]) -
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 290. BB B 2 | (4

A}

On 30 October 2007, the Company received valid
acceptances of open offer in respect of 1,113,648,000
CHCGC shares (“Batch A” and “Batch B”) representing
approximately 97.44% of the issued share capital of CHCGC.
As valid acceptances have been received for not less than
90% of the Disinterested Shares, the Company made its
rights of compulsory acquisition under Section 88 of Cayman
Islands Company Law to compulsorily acquire the entire
outstanding CHCGC shares amounting to approximately
29,252,000 shares. The outstanding shares are eligible to
convert into approximately 13,295,000 shares of the
Company which it had not already acquired on 30 October
2007.

As at 31 December 2007, the Company had approximately
13,295,000 shares to be issued representing approximately
29,252,000 CHCGC shares under the compulsory
acquisition. The fair value of the ordinary shares of the
Company is determined using the published price available
at the date of the acquisition on 30 October 2007 for the
relevant CHCGC’s shares, amounted to approximately
HK$152,894,000, representing HK$11.5 per share (“Batch
C”).

CHCGC contributed HK$7.7 million to the Group’s profit for
the period between the date of acquisition and the balance

sheet date.

N-_ZEELFE+A=Z+RH XAFDH
1,113,648,000% CHCGCRE 17 ([A#t ] &
[Bit]) (4% M CHCGCE % 17 IR AR 49
97.44%) WEI BB AREMBLH -ARAK
AR B EIT DR 0% EFIEBEKRMD 2
BEREN RNRARRBEFAEHERAANES
88F 17 { o il U B 4 1| - LA 58 Il W % 2
it 7R U BE 2 4929,252,0004 CHCGCRE 15 °
RARRZTZTLF+A=THERKE
2B BRI P KA #13,295,0000 A A
Ao

RZEZ+F+_A=+—H8B ARA%
5 #713,295,0008% 8 F 2 17 2 R 17 - 1R #&
o I U BE - F8E R £929,252,0000% CHCGC
R ARG EBR 2 AFEEAKER
H-ZT+F+H=+HYBEBCHCGC
Bz BBSARMUEETE) AL
152,894,000/ 7T HE RN B K11.5%8 T
(rc#el) -

BWEHEEEAE A ILEE CHCGCA
7R £ B #5758 7,700,000 JT 2 i A o
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B

29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 29. WIB K B 2 A (4)

il

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2007, MEEEER _ZTT+F-H—-HE R
total group revenue for the year would have been K AFE2EBEBHRZEEER B
HK$2,646.3 million, and loss for the year (including 2,646,300,000% 70 M FE &8 (BiE5
impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill arising WEEEACHZCRABREBELY
on acquisition of approximately 3,723 million) would have 3,723,000,000% 7T) # &3,429,100,0007%
been HK$3,429.1 million. The pro forma information is for T BEBRNEEHBRE BXEAE
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication AR EEENR _TTLF—H—HE X
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that RERATAEBERBIG 2 KaE kg s
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been EEZVRER T TBRIERKREE 2T
completed on 1 January 2007, nor is it intended to be a HY o

projection of future results.

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. g 7
Number of
ordinary
shares
EERHEE
000 HK$’000
TR T
Authorised: EERA:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRABECA0B L EBR
— at 1 January 20086, —-RZFEEF-HA—H"
31 December 2006 and —EERFTA=+t—8BR
31 December 2007 —EELF+ZA=+—8H 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BBITRBRERAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each EREECA0E T2 EER
- at 1 January 2006 and —R-FBEAF—H-BR
31 December 2006 SRS o = 772,921 77,292
— Issued in consideration — B ECHCGCZ B & {TIR A
for the acquisition of MmET2RERSG (Hf7Z29)
the issued share capital of
CHCGC (note 29) 506,153 50,615
— Exercise of options — 1T s AR 2,520 252
- at 31 December 2007 -R-22tF+-A=+—H 1,281,594 128,159
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

31.

In the acquisition of CHCGC, approximately 519,448,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (note 29) were required to
be issued for the acquisition of 100% of issued capital of
CHCGC. On 30 October 2007, approximately 506,153,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were issued to the
shareholders of CHCGC who accepted the acquisition offer
on or before 30 October 2007. As at 31 December 2007,
approximately 13,295,000 ordinary shares had to be issued
to the other shareholders of CHCGC under the compulsory
acquisition of the outstanding CHCGC shares pursuant to

Section 88 of the Cayman Islands Company Law.

SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

Equity settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include Directors, independent non-executive Directors, and
employees of the Company and any of its subsidiaries and
associates. The Scheme became effective upon the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on 5
October 1997 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,

will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

Annual Report 2007 & 3R

30. R A& ()

31.

B W ECHCGC ARRIEAZMTH
519,448,000X B EE0. 1B T 2 H @R
(Kf#329) LA EECHCGC 2 23 B 81T/
K-RZZBZELF+A=+B -AARAR
—ETLEFTASHERZATERARES
#9,2 CHCGCR 3 3 17 #1506,153,000/%8 &
REECAB T2 ERR - R_SZLF+
ZA=+—B RBREREMASESQRE
2588 % #E 17 9% I UL 14 K W i 2 CHCGC
B 15 AR B EICHCGC Z H th B R #1749
13,295,000/% & i@ AR -

LRGBXNAREAZRS
SRR 5 B AR A T

AARRBERERE ([ZTE]) FEMA
B K B R AR E 2 R EE R BB
ZERERSHEE-ZEAERZAER
BARBRREERNMB AR REEARZ
EX BUFPTEFRER -ZAER—
ANEF+ARE BIARDE R R
FrEm B EAFIRERC BRIFBUEHE
B BRZFEEERBREGTFENAR
77 e

(P27



128

TCC International Holdings Limited & BB EB AR A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MW R M

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE - ZFEE+F+-_A=+—HIFZF

31. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(continued)

Equity settled share option scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2007, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Scheme was 8,980,000, representing
0.7% of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.
Options may be exercised at any time from six months from
the date of grant of the share option, that is, from 1 October

2006 to 30 March 2011.

Details of specific category of share options are as follows:

31.

DB NREZR S (4)
PABRA G52 B R B ()

R-FZTLF+-_A=+—H0 RE&K
e EHMADRITR ZBERE 2B @R )
218 /58,980,000 (5 AR AIZ A ZE %
TTRAR0.7% © RERCHE R O RE BHE 1% 11 B 1
BEFAEARNBIZZEERF+A—AHZE
—E-—Ff=ZAZ=tH)EETE-

g

RARERIEREZFROT:

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price
RH B - p TES ITHREE
31 March 2006 6 months 1 October 2006 to HK$1.266
—EBTAREF N E A 30 March 2011 1.266/% 7T
—A=+—H —EERF+A—AB=&E
—ET-—F=A=+1H
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31. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION MN.URODXNREZRS (#)

(continued)

Equity settled share option scheme (continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by the Directors and certain employees

during the year:

LI A8z BIRES 8 ()

TREERFAARARREERETEEMN

FEREZESHER:

Number of
Name or At share options At Exercised At Date of Exercise
category of 1 January granted 31 December during 31 December grant of price of
participant 2006  during 2006 2006 the year 2007 share options share options
R-ZZEXRE
gEE RZZERE Bz R-BEARE R-ZZBLFE BRE BRE
HESER —-A-B BR#EBE +-A=+t-B FREFET=A=+-B BLAH e
HK$
B
Directors
Ex
KOO, Cheng-Yun, Leslie - 5,000,000 5,000,000 (600,000) 4,400,000 31 March 2006 1.266
ERA ZTZRF=ZA=+-H
WU Yih Chin - 1,500,000 1,500,000 (600,000) 900,000 31 March 2006 1.266
RER “EEREZA=T—H
- 6,500,000 6,500,000 (1,200,000) 5,300,000
Other employees - 5,000,000 5,000,000 (1,320,000) 3,680,000 31 March 2006 1.266
HEitfE S ZZEREZA=1+—H

Total (Note)
BE ()

11,500,000 11,500,000 (2,520,000)

8,980,000

The market prices of the shares on the dates of which
options were exercised for the period from 6 September
2007 to 27 November 2007 ranged from HK$7.79 to
HK$12.4 per share.

RE-ZEZ+HENANBE_ZZE+F+
— A ttBRRERERETEASR R’
BN FER7.798 TE12.45 T o
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31.

SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(continued)

Equity settled share option scheme (continued)

Note: The 8,980,000 share options outstanding at 31 December
2007 were held by Directors and employees who were
originally seconded from T'Cement, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. These share options are subject
to special restrictions on their exercise period: up to 40% of
the share option held by each Director/employee may be
exercised in 2007, a further 30% in 2008 and the entire
balance from 2009 onwards. These share options will not
lapse when the Director/employee leaves the Group and
returns to his original employment with T'Cement; their
termination is determined by reference to the date when the
Director/employee subsequently ceases to be employed by

T’Cement.

The estimated fair value of the options granted during 2006
under the Scheme was HK$3,400,000.

The fair value of options granted under the Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2006 was calculated using
the Black-Scholes pricing model. The inputs into the model

are as follows:

Weighted average share price HK$1.24
Exercise price HK$1.266
Expected volatility 25%
Expected life 5 years
Risk-free rate 4.468%
Expected dividend yield 1.96%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous

one.

31. U X KB

LARR 78 4

i 7

ZR5 (&)

HeBRESSE (&)

RZZETZTE+F+A=Z+—H"
8,980,00017 & AR TTE B8 AU Ty i IR R AR
AR BEIERAFT Cementbabs AT 2
EELEERB-ZSHREZTEE
A %mw&%n R§$/EE—JE/\*7
ZHETREAFEZERESR
40%  R—ZEENFRTTESRIN0% * H
—EENFRBAAIITE A REZ
SEREETEEES EEHIAE
B I 3% 8 T'Cement.z R T E @ i M &
MoHERIEDRES BEEHER
T'Cement®X It X B 2 BEAEE -

R-ZERFREZTEAR D ZBREZ

3t 2

¥ 1{& &3,400,00078 Tt °

REBEZ2_EENF+_A=+—HILHF

B RBEZTEHEELEREZATFETD
BEBN R — R EBENGTE i
AZEBENT:

g FHKRE 1.243% 7T
T1EE 1.266/%8 7T
TE &R 18 25%
TEET HA R 54
2 3 b ) 4.468%
TEE AR B = 1.96%

B REDKEARRRERNBE—FA
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31. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION MN.URODXNREZRS (#)

(continued)

Equity settled share option scheme (continued)

Because the Black-Scholes pricing model requires the input
of highly substantive assumptions, including the volatility of
share price, changes in subjective input assumptions can

materially affect the fair value estimate.

The Group recognised no expense for the year ended 31
December 2007 (2006: HK$3,400,000) in relation to share

options granted under the Scheme by the Company.

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Directors to grant options to selected Eligible Persons
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group. The basis of eligibility of any of
the Eligible Persons to the grant of options shall be
determined by the Directors from time to time on the basis
of the Directors’ opinion as to his contribution or potential
contribution to the development and growth of the Group.
Eligible Persons means any person falling within one of the

following classes:

() any Director or proposed Director (whether executive
or non-executive, including any independent non-
executive Director), employee or proposed employee
of any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder, a person who controls the Company or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder (a

“Category A Eligible Person”); or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any controlling shareholder or any
company controlled by a controlling shareholder (a

“Category B Eligible Person”);

LI A8z BIRES 8 ()

BRI R —Sf AR EERABRGAR
Z2BRRBE BREREZRE ERZE
BRERBEM LR A HRFERE
EEERTE-

ANEBBREE-_ZTLF+-_A=+—
BIEFEAEBAQARIBREZEMRL 2
BREZERASATL(ZTEAF:
3,400,000 7T ) °

MERESAEEETESR D BEK
BETHEEREBRAL (FRARFHASK
B2 ERSEER B2 BB SR -
EMEERATERBREZER KH
EXTHRBEESFHRAUAEHER LB
RAEZERBEERERMZERMEE -
EERALHENBR TIEF—FEZA
=+

() MAEBEEAKE QB REMERE
R AE A i P AR AR R AR ) 2 2 BB
ZEMEBEBERREEIES (T AT
HERT BREEMNBIFENTE
F) RESREEES (AEAERA
1)

(i) AEEEAKERBREMMERKR
K (] R R AR AR SR I 2 R A BT 2
ERAEFZEAFEA (BEAER
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31. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(continued)

Equity settled share option scheme (continued)

and, for the purposes of the New Share Option Scheme,
shall include any company controlled by one or more persons

belonging to any of the above classes of persons;

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the New Share Option Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the New Share Option Scheme. The
Company can grant share options to subscribe upto
77,292,200 shares of the Company under the New Share
Option Scheme. The 10% limit may be refreshed with the

approval of shareholders of the Company.

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Any option to
be granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company (or any of their respective
associates) must be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding any independent non-

executive Director who is the grantee of the option).

S1L.URGXNREZRS (£)

i

LRAEE 2BRES (&2)

st 3R ERT 8l 5 - AR & LT
M—Be—BAZRAALEN ZEMQ
GE

PR (50 4R 15 8 B AR A o 81 4% 1 2 BB AR A i
AFRETZROHBE GXETEBBNE
PRt B ER M E B D EITRMD10% &
7™ &) B AR AR HT B AR RE S B R AR - DA
RIEH 277,292,200 A& 2 A AL 19 © 48 &
REPRRBL R Z10% ERAT FE -

REAR R BRI ERALRER—
FRELRAIEER 2 BIRET AITEE
FrETEETRITZBNDEE TREBS
ARRREAEEEHTRD1% - LAE
2 ARRAEBITRABHEZME (K
EXREZEMBEAN) REBRE ALE
MEBTEE (TEELRS RBREAR
AZEMBILIERITES) #k-
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31. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION MN.URODXNREZRS (#)

(continued)

Equity settled share option scheme (continued)

If a grant of option to a substantial shareholder or
independent non-executive Director (or any of their respective
associates) will result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted
and to be granted to such person under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares in issue; and in excess of HK$5 million, such
further grant of options is required to be approved by

shareholders.

The option period commences on the Commencement Date
(the date upon which the options are deemed to be granted
and accepted) of such options and ends on the close of
business on the day immediately preceding the tenth

anniversary thereof.

The exercise price per share shall be determined by the
Board, being at least the higher of (i) the closing price of
the shares on the date on which an option is offered to an
Eligible Person, which must be a business day (“Offer Date”);
(ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date, and (iii) the

nominal value of one share.

i

LRAEE 2BRES (&2)

WMEARREERRABIIFNTES
(SEEEE 2 EMBEA) L EAER
B BERREERRERD A ILEERA
1218 A REITER BRI ERET E R AD
AT AMBREGEEMZALTELER
BREERE (BEETE BEHEER
RITHEZBRRE) METREETZRG
HEAHABBEEITRHNIBRIERB
5,000,000/ 7T - Bl — P 5% H BB AR 7 4K
AR R AL A

BRESMRRNZSERE CRIEE (B
REEREREREEERZAH) M-
VTREEZHREFAM —HEXB4E
5 i i o

BERENTEEEREESEEE XED
HERAT=ZFHh28FE (VERAEER
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31.

32.

SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(continued)

Equity settled share option scheme (continued)

The New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date,
of 23 May 2006. As at 31 December 2007, no option had
been granted under the New Share Option Scheme since

its adoption.

For the details of the New Share Option Scheme, please
refer to the announcement of the Company on 10 May 2005

which is available in the Stock Exchange’s Website.

RESERVES

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the fair value of the combined net assets
value of the subsidiaries involved in the Group reorganisation
in September 1997 and the assets, liabilities and
undertakings which relate to the import and distribution of
cement carried out by Hong Kong Cement Manufacturing
Company Limited prior to the Group reorganisation (the
“Relevant Business”), as if they were acquired by the Group
when the subsidiaries and the Relevant Business
commenced operations, and the nominal value of the

Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable
to wholly-foreign owned enterprises, one of the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries is required to appropriate an amount of
not less than 10% of its annual after tax profit to the statutory
reserve fund, which may be used to increase the paid-up

capital of the PRC subsidiary.

31.

32.

UGB EZNAREZRS (#)
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33.

34.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Pursuant to the compulsory acquisition of the outstanding
CHCGC shares by the Group as detailed in note 29, the
Company issued 13,295,000 ordinary shares to the
shareholders of CHCGC which their shares were compulsory

acquired on 7 January 2008.

After the compulsory acquisition of the outstanding CHCGC
shares, the listing of CHCGC shares on the Stock Exchange

was withdrawn with effect from 8 January 2008.

On 18 March 2008, the group disposed all the equity interest
in Koos Venture Capital, included in available-for-sale
investments, for a consideration of NTD87,932,000
(approximately HK$21,983,000) to an independent third
party. The carrying value of this available-for-sale investment
at 31 December 2007 was HK$12,899,000.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the profit and loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except
for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in

accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

33.

34.

Annual Report 2007 & 3R
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34.

35.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit plans
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the

retirement benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated income
statement of HK$1,926,000 (2006: HK$674,000) represents
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates

specified in the rules of the plans.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 26 net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and accumulated losses. The Directors of the
Company review the capital structure on annual basis. As
part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associates with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue

of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

34.

35.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36. ¢RI T A
Categories of financial instruments SRIAZER
2007 2006
—EELEF e A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FHET
Financial assets cREE
Fair value through profit BAFEFAER
or loss (FVTPL)
— Held-for-trading investments —REXSGRABZEKRE 335,038 540,255
Loans and receivables (including Bk EWSRIE
cash and cash equivalents) (EREBESRESSE) 1,230,816 462,198
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 71,564 71,564
Financial liabilities EREE
Amortised cost B 35 B R 3,276,318 1,811,886

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, trade receivables, bank deposits and balances,
trade payables and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
credit risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, currency risk
and liquidity risk and the policies applied by the Group to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented in a timely and effective manner.

HERBREEBZEHENE
AEEFESHIABERARE &
WE SGRIB - RITFERLER BRNEFHK
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €T A (&

==
=

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

At 31 December 2007, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk, which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties, is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective financial assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit-standing.

The Group’s mainly trades on terms based on prepayments
and letters of credits in most of the transactions and as at
31 December 2007 the Group’s account receivables spread
over a number of counterparties. Thus, the management
considers that the risk is adequately monitored and does

not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 91.1%
(2006: 70.8%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2007.
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in

relation to floating-rate bank borrowings,

receivables and bank balances. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise. The fair value interest rate risk

on bank deposits is insignificant as the fixed deposits

are short-term.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate, London Interbank Offered Rate and
benchmark loan rates of financial institutions set by

The People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s

borrowings.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments at the balance sheet date. The analysis is
prepared assuming the loan receivables and bank
balances were netted to bank borrowings at the balance
sheet date and net balance was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.

Annual Report 2007 & 3R
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
loss for the year ended 31 December 2007 would
increase/decrease by HK$10,903,000 (the profit in 2006
would decrease/increase by HK$6,466,000). This is

mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest

rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

The Group is mainly exposed to United States Dollars

(“USD”) and HKD.

Certain bank loans of the Group are denominated in
foreign currencies (see note 26 for details). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency loan. However,
management monitors the related foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

36.E@M I A (&)
MBEEREREEREEK (4)

7 2318 SR B0ME 2 B AT H b Al
EREAHTE AFEEBE_T
THF+A=+—RIEFEZERE
#18 5%10,903,000/8 1T (=TT X
3% IR, 486,466,000/ 7T ) <35 £
EARNEAEBEZFBERXRRITREZ
) 55 /8 B 7 B -

AEBXESRETRAETAR

AEBZETRITERUINELZER
(FIBERME26) AKBRBLEE
FASNEBIR Z NS SR IR - R B
EEBRTEEERNERR YRE
FEREZ B MEAINEE R -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 5% in exchange rate of
USD and HKD against relevant functional currency of
Renminbi (“RMB”), while all other variables are held
constant. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at each balance sheet

date for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.

Annual Report 2007 & 3R

36. ﬁl’ﬂl,\\
BEEREEE t%‘%EﬁiBZ% (&)

TRAVNAEERETRETH AR
NEEBARE ZERAEBL%LZ
AEEH I HRE RREMEET
ot BRENMIERREEKRES
SNESIERRIER MR &&EE BRI
BN EEREBHHEHKLE -

2007
o
HK$’000
TET

(Increase) decrease in loss for the year REFEERE GEm R
- if RMB weakens against USD —WARBHETIHE (5,459)
— if RMB strengthens against USD —MARBHETEE 5,459
— if RMB weakens against HKD —MARBLETHE (4,968)
— if RMB strengthens against HKD —WARB R B 4,968
2006
—ZEERF
HK$'000
FTHET

(Decrease) increase in profit for the year REBZRF Ofi4) 18
— if RMB weakens against USD —MARBHETLHEE (2,797)
- if RMB strengthens against USD —WARBHETAES 2,797
- if RMB weakens against HKD — W AR L BETLHE (6,921)
— if RMB strengthens against HKD —MARBHETAS 6,921

A change of 5% in exchange rate of each USD and
HKD against relevant functional currency of RMB does

not affect other components of equity.

XTRABTABRAMEEEA
HIRGREE TS EiEa < H M als

Rz EE

[

1)

o

N
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HE—-ZTE+F+-F=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

36.E@M I A (&)
MEERREREEREER (4)

(continued)

The Group’s equity investments at each balance sheet
date exposed the Group to equity security price risk.
The management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.
The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on

equity securities listed in Taiwan.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks in respect

of held-for-trading investments at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective held-for-trading
investments had been 10% higher/lower, the Group’s
loss for the year ended 31 December 2007 would
decrease/increase by HK$33,504,000 (the profit in 2006
would increase/decrease by HK$54,026,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments. In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the price risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposures during
the year. The group is going to dispose the equity

investments in the future years.

The Group’s sensitivity to held-for-trading investments
has decreased during the year mainly due to the
decrease in held-for-trading investments. In
management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the price risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposures during the
year. The group is going to dispose the equity

investments in the future years.

AEEZBRARENEE RS AEE
RERABAEEAR-ETRERE
Wi AL TRAREE 2 RAEA
P IR Ut LR - A SR B 2 B LR
BEBRAE LT 2 RAE

N TBEED T IRERRE BHE
R ER RG22 NE 2 RERRM
ErE-

WREERERSRABRZIREZEE
EATHR10% - BIREER S H
BRERNFEEE BWEAEEE
E-TELE+_A=+—-BILFEE
Z BB R, 33,504,000/ 7T (=
T TN Fm AR 54,026,000
) ERERA HRFRELCLT
R B R - 8RR SRR E S AT IR
REEHBRAR-

FRAREE 2 HERZRAGEINE L
FREERE TEAKEXZHRE L
BRERLAE-EEERR ARFE
LA A] R BRF A R SR
EaMATRKREBRAR - NEER
RERFEDNGEE L ERAKE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZ-ZFTE+F+-_A=+—HIFEF
TR A ®

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank

borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2007, the Group has available
unutilised short-term bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$890,235,000 (2006: HK$165,542,000). Details of which

are set out in Note 26.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

BERREEEEEER (&)

REERDESRRME AKEERR
FEEEERSTEKF2RELREF
B URASELERHESMRERS
MERB X E - EEBERRITEREZ
BRBL UERERTAERZNZHRE-

AEBKRERITEEERARDESZFE
RR-R-ZBELF+-_A=+—H &%
EEBAmMEMREEZ EHPRITERE
€ #) 5890,235,0008 7L (Z T NF:
165,542,000/ 7T) - A EH NI 5126 o

TERFVNASEERABZHESRE R I
BR-RIFTECREEN S ZERIDRIE
AEEANRZERARZEREBET R
FHRAGRERY BENEREAEHRS

s =
JLEE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZ-ZFTE+F+-_A=+—HIFEF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

36. M T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BXRAMEEEZEHEHEEK (£)
(continued)
Weighted
average Total
effective  Repayable 1-3 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  on demand months  to1year 1-5years 5+years cash flows amount
3]
mEFY  RERR MBAZE BeR
ERA= E#E 1Z3fA -f 125% 55 L ag REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAlk TET FEL TER FEL TER FEL TER
2007 ZBELE
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ #fT£ & BEE
Trade and other payables ERESEHRR
H b 5R N/A
TER - 110,567 125,094 - - 235,661 235,661
Amount due to ERDE
minority shareholder RETE N/A
TiEh 17,567 - - - - 17,567 17,567
Bank loans RITER Note
ik - 124359 963,690 2,369,670 - 3,457,719 3,023,090
17,567 234,926 1,088,784 2,369,670 - 3,710,947 3,276,318
2006 ZREAE
Non-derivative financial liabilites ~ ¥{T4¢REE
Trade and other payables ERESERR
LY A8 N/A
TER - 135072 79,756 - - 214828 214,828
Amount due to ERDE
minority shareholder REFE N/A
TER 17,567 - - - - 17,567 17,567
Bank loans RITER Note
ik - 22,335 694,692 546,613 565,626 1,829,165 1,579,491
17,567 157,407 774,448 546,613 565,625 2,061,560 1,811,886
Note: B 7%

The bank loans of the Group are variable-rate loans which carry
interest with reference to Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and

benchmark loan rates of financial institutions set by The People’s

Bank of China.

FEBZRITEFRBIDEEER NBEFR
BRITAXFRERTEARBITAGEZ SR
BEERELER KGR -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

36. €@ I H #)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted

market bid prices;

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from observable

current market transactions as input.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, cash
and bank balances, trade and other payables, loan
receivables and amount due to minority shareholder
approximate their respective fair values due to the relatively
short maturity of these financial instruments. The Directors
considered that the fair value of the loan to an associate at
the balance sheet date is not significantly different from its
carrying amount. The Group’s bank borrowings are mainly
variable-rate borrowings which are carrying at prevailing
market rate. The carrying amount is approximate to the fair
value. The fair values of other classes of financial assets
and financial liabilities and disclosed in respective notes to

consolidated financial statements.

THEEREMAEBEZATE
THEERTRABZAFEETLON:

o  BEREGHERRGHERNERRET
LEBEZSREENERBEZAYT
BN2EMEMHREABEE:

. HtREAERSBAMZATFED
SRR TR I8 3 5 (AR M L
FRRSRESTAEEY —MAR

TERAET-

FEUE 5 MR R E b USRI - R & KR
TSR EBNEZERRREMENRIE
WERRENDBREREFAZ REERR
FEZAVHERE RASZEERMTA
PERHMTE EFR R BTHERFLZ
ERZAPERGEEREAREELES
RER-AGHEZRITEEZRERRRT
MGNEFEZ IO REE REES
HEAFERE -EMERIZEREERS
BEBEZATENREPBRR 2 ZME
-
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZ-ZFTE+F+-_A=+—HIFEF

37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
On 30 October 2007, the Group acquired CHCGC by issuing
new ordinary shares of the Company to the shareholders of

CHCGC. Further details of the acquisition are set out in

ST.EXFBRERZ
R-ZTTEF+HAZ+HE AEEBEBEM
CHOGCR % B 77 A 22 7 2 7 % i B i
CHCGC - Wi 2 i — & S BUR B 220 -

note 29.
38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. EAREE
2007 2006
—EELHF —EEX
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Capital expenditure in respect of BRIHBEARAREE M HRE
acquisition of property, plant and BREZESE
equipment contracted for ME-BERIBEZEATH
but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 760,274 217,669
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE - ZFEE+F+-_A=+—HIFZF

39.

40.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

Annual Report 2007 & 3R

2«(

nr *E. IJEKJ:%
REEH AEERTAEE 2 LERY
2HEREAEREEE N KRBT ZE

E-EEMBWT:

2007 2006
—EELF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Within one year —F R 7,036 6,633
In the second to fifth years inclusive S -_FEZFRF (BHEEREMEF) 25,457 24,129
Over five years BB AF 82,146 85,160
114,639 115,922
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEROESEASERES THEYME
Group for certain of its rented premises. Leases are Rz - HOFHRE=F-
negotiated for an average term of three years.
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 40. EEHEH

As at 31 December 2007, assets with the following carrying
amounts have been pledged to secure borrowings of the
Group (Note 26). As at 31 December 2006, the pledged
bank deposit has been pledged to secure the facilities of

letter of credit.

R-ZEZLF+_RA=+—H U KA
BzEECER UEREAEEZEE (K
226) R_ETF+A=+—H0'B2
ERITERSEER AEREREZS
Bo

2007 2006

—E2LF —ETREF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FAT

Property, plant and equipment Y WE R&E 1,339,189 =
Prepaid lease payments JENFERIEA 632,437 =
Pledged bank deposit B EITER 3,651 27,523
1,975,277 27,523
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HE—-ZTE+F+-F=+—HILFE

41. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances set out

elsewhere in these financial statements, during the year,

the Group entered into the following material related party

transactions:

Transactions of a recurring nature

MBEALIRS

BRZEMBREREMMT A2 X5 K&

Transactions (i) to (vi) also constitute connected transactions

as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange:

AR R E 2 B E

RN RAFE AEBBE#ET THEKE
BATRS:

BEMEZRS

F()EF(VI)E ﬁ&%)ﬂ%)ﬂzﬁﬁﬁxﬁﬁ 5 EW

2007 2006
—EZLF ZEEX
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i iF FTER FHET
(i) Purchases of cement and () MEREZERAD A
clinker from the ultimate B 57Kk KRR
holding company (b) 40,837 87,685
(i) Rental expenses payable (i) BN—ERZR
to a fellow subsidiary WEBARZES (3 4,320 4,320
(i Rental expenses payable (iii) B — A E QA
to a related company (note 1) ZM&e (Wat1) (a) 1,824 1,631
(iv) Logistic and unloading services (iv) B — R R
fee payable to a fellow subsidiary i SWEER/NCT v by
K HE R & (a) 4,937 5,365
(v) Implementation services fee of v) ENEREMEAF
a computer software system ZEMEBMERR
payable to fellow subsidiaries ZEBREE (a) 8,860 =
(vi) Maintenance service fee of vi) BB XK B AR
a computer software system ZEMEBMERR
payable to fellow subsidiaries ZHERBE (a) 3,296 =
(vii) Sales of cement to an associate (vii) [A] — fEI Bé & 8 A
$HE K (b) 33,658 35,802
(viii) Sales of cement (vii)fal — B B E A T
to a related party (note 2) HENKE (HaE2) (b) 13,071 =
(ix) Purchases of clinker (ix) A — B EEA LT
from a related party (note 2) BEE (KE2) (b) 17,033 =
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41. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
Transactions of a recurring nature (continued)

Notes:

(1)  The related company is an associate of the ultimate holding

company.

(2) The related party is the subsidiary of the major shareholder of

the Company.

The remuneration of key management personnel which
represents the Directors’ remuneration is disclosed in note
11.

Notes:

(@) The prices of these transactions were determined between

the parties with reference to the agreements signed.

(b) The prices of these transactions were determined between

the parties with reference to market prices.

Annual Report 2007 £ %§

@ ZBAEALDARAETERRZHER
&l o

FTEEBABIMS REERE) NI
MEE-
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42. SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary shares/

. P B X =)

ARBRZEEEFR_EEAF+ A
Zt+—HZEEWBAR ZFBUOT:

Proportion of

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
EMAIR BRAZER/
WEAREE RS ZMRAEE EhEEREELH  TEXHK
Directly  Indirectly
BE#% &
Anhui King Bridge Cement PRC Registered capital - 60%  Manufacture and
Company Limited* H US$15,000,000 distribution of
ZHERE Bl slag powder
KEBR DA 15,000,000% 7 HERD HBBH
Chiefolk Company Hong Kong Ordinary - 70%  Investment holding
Limited B HK$1,000,000 REEK
LAk
1,000,000 7T
Chia Hsin Jingyang Cement PRC Ordinary - 100%  Mining of limestone and
Company Limited*’ H US$173,000,000 production and
(subsidiary acquired in 2007) @R sales of cement and
(renamed to Jurong TCC 173,000,000% T cement products

Cement Co., Limited with
effect from 14 March 2008)

R REKERRARY
(RZZZBLFHEZ
WEAE)
(BZZE/\E=ZATHAR
52 RABRARKEERAA)

HEERAREE
REENKER
KBS
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42. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued

incorporation/ ordinary shares/

42. i B » | (&)

Proportion of

Annual Report 2007 & 3R

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
A R EROTEER/
WEARERE RS AMRAEE EhEERERSLA  TEEHR
Directly  Indirectly
BE% &

China Hsin Cement Greater Cayman Islands Ordinary 100% - Investment holding
China Holding Corporation FEHS US$11,429,000 REZR
(subsidiary acquired in 2007) LEk
(R-2TLFHELZ 11,429,000% 1t
WEAE)

Dragon Pride International British Virgin Islands Ordinary - 100%  Provision of cement
Limited (“BVI")/Philippines Us$100 handling services

RERAEE LRk REKERERY
(TRx#8])/ 100% T
FERE
HKC Investments Limited Taiwan Ordinary - 100%  Investment holding
BRERERNERRAA aE NT$695,000,000 REZR
LAk
695,000,000% & #

Hong Kong Cement Hong Kong Ordinary = 100%  Import and distribution

Company Limited e HK$10,000 of cement
EREL EORAHEKE
10,000 7T

5
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B

42. Fff 8~ ® (#)

>

42. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

il

Place of

incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary shares/

Proportion of

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
A R EROTEER/
WEARERE RS AMRAEE EhEERERSLA  TEEHR
Directly  Indirectly
B#% &

Jingyang Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100%  Investment holding
(subsidiary acquired in 2007) & HK$24,000,000 RARR
(RZZZ+EHEL EREL
WEAE) 24,000,0007% 7T

Jurong Jingda Clay PRC Registered - 93.3%  Mining of clay
Company Limited* 3 RMB3,000,000 BB+
(subsidiary acquired in 2007) HERA

DARERTERRAA? A R #3,000,0007T
R-ZTLFUEZ
W2 a)

Koning Concrete Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% Investment holding

B HK$100 RARR
EpL
10078 7T
TCC Cement Corporation Philippines Ordinary - 100%  Provision of cement
FEE Peso 91,020,500 handling services
EREle REKERERY
91,020,500% &

TCC Fuzhou Cement PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
Company Limited*’ H US$16,250,000 distribution of cement

BMERAKRE BTN SERDHEKE
BRAE 16,250,000% T
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42. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. ff & 2~ 7] ()

Place of

incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary shares/

Proportion of

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
A R EROTEER/
WEARERE RS AMRAEE EhBEERERLH  TEEHR
Directly  Indirectly
B% EikEd
TCC Fuzhou Yangyu Port PRC Registered capital - 100%  Provision of port facility
Company Limited*’ e US$5,000,000 services
BM G EEE BRITEN 1R 14 985 58 2% e PR 75
BRAE 5,000,000% 7
TCC Hong Kong Cement BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary 100% - Investment holding
(BVI) Holdings Limited RREE /&R US$1,000 REER
gl
1,000% 7T
TCC Hong Kong Cement BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary - 100%  Property holding
Development Limited ERES/BE US$10 BRENE
Deferred™*
US$90
T
10%7T
90%TT
TCC Hong Kong Cement BVI Ordinary - 100%  Investment holding
(International) Limited RS US$100 REER
1003 7

53
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42. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. B AT (&)

154

Place of

incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary shares/

Proportion of

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
A R BRATEER/
MELREH RS dEfRAEE ElhREEERLL TEXK
Directly  Indirectly
ER:3 A%
TCC Liuzhou Construction PRC Registered capital - 42%**  Manufacture and
Materials Company Limited* e US$13,500,000 distribution of
MM &R EM FM R A slag powder
BERAR" 13,500,000 7T RERDHRED
TCC Yingde Cement PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and
Company Limited* e US$166,900,000 distribution of cement
B (EE) IR AR A and clinker
BRRAM 166,900,000% 7T BER D HKRERAM
Ulexite Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary 100% - Investment holding
BRAHE/EA US$100 REER
LAk
100E T
Ying Xin Yingde Cement PRC Registered capital = 100%  Dormant
Co. Ltd.* i US$2,000,000 R
Rz (RE) KR it it AR A
BRAR"M 2,000,000% 7T
Zhenjiang City Dantu PRC Registered = 93.3%  Mining of clay
District Gaozi Clay i RMB3,000,000 R L
Company Limited* A R A
(subsidiary acquired AR #3,000,0007T
in 2007)
HImAESERL
BREEDA?
(RZBZLE
Wz BRE)
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42. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Registered as equity joint ventures registered under the PRC

law.

1 Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprise registered under

the PRC law.

*2 Registered as limited liability companies registered under the

PRC law.

** A subsidiary of a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and, accordingly, is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of

the Company’s control over it.

***  The deferred shares of TCC Hong Kong Cement Development
Limited are non-voting, carry no rights to dividends and are
only entitled to a return of capital when the surplus exceeds

US$1,000,000,000,000,000,000,000.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

None of the subsidiaries had in issue any debt securities at
31 December 2007.

BT 4
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Y BREBSREFEXMEMZEERA-

v BRERREFEEGGFM I EEE D
2,

2 BEAREFEEMGFMEREEL
7o

v ARFZHEEMEARZWELT @
EVNTEE STl A1) PN R

*** TCC Hong Kong Cement Development
Limited 2 i 7 fi% 37 7T M1 5 1 R4 - 77 T BT
BRERRKREZEF BEFHSED
1,000,000,000,000,000,000,000 % 7T ¥
T ERERA -

FREIAEEZERRYNFEEEBENK
TEEFEIBKASEEEFEZTIE
BAZARRMNBAR -BEEERR I
EMBARZHE SEHERTR

R-EZLF+_A=+—H HEWNE
NAETEMMES-
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Financial Summary

BB E

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—ET=F g S kS “ZThF “ETRE 3 2
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEL FHT THL TET TET

Results ES
Revenue &= 253,246 315,835 418,002 980,418 1,829,168
Profit (loss) for the year, ADRREEEREE

before impairment of loss on goodwil,  JHEEER 2

attributable to shareholders AEERT (B8)

of the Company 60,007 328,132 50,002 (18,303) 215,994
Profit (Loss) for the year attributable to N7 7] [X R E15 A EE

shareholders of the Company il (B8E) 60,007 328,132 50,002 (18,308) (3,506,645)
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB REE 346,657 503,693 1,410,042 1,611,004 3,873,850
Prepaid lease payments BNBERE 10,735 50,102 50,611 64,728 714,897
Intangible assets BYEE 1,774 10,732 10,811 18,602 95,720
Non-trading securities ERERIREES 114,511 94,892 - - -
Available-for-sale investments AfHERE - - 77,741 71,564 71,564
Long term loan receivables REERER - - 7,690 - -
Long term deposits REREH 1,800 1,800 1,943 1,756 720
Deposit for the acquisition of property, YW EME BEX

plant and equipment gEzA S - - - 157,715 645,713
Interests in associates and loan BERAERER

to an associate BELRER 113,925 108,395 123,913 130,584 130,199
Deferred tax asset BEHBEAE - - - 42 33
Current assets REBE 989,233 1,154,112 963,197 1,121,333 1,943,076
Total assets BEE 1,578,635 1,928,726 2,645,948 3,177,328 7,475,772
Liabilities BfE
Current liabilities mEBAE 548,898 660,493 710,096 915,705 1,391,178
Other non-current liabilities EERBAR 107,000 11,631 659,079 941,426 2,017,728
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEEE 299 2,152 4,815 2,834 147,885
Total liabilities BafE 656,197 674,276 1,373,990 1,859,965 3,556,791
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